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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$49,159,000 (2017:
HK$82,259,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group

recorded a consolidated revenue of HK$114,500,000 (2017:

HK$100,091,000) and a loss attributable to owners of the

Company of HK$49,159,000 (2017: HK$82,259,000).

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
operations segment for the year increased from approximately
HK$40.3 million to HK$41.5 million. As at 31st March 2018, the
Group provided channels through various operators, including
“RED by HBO” channel through the platform of HBO in
certain Asian territories, HD movie channel through Chunghwa
Telecom MOD platform and a movie channel through the TVB

pay vision in Hong Kong.

Since November 2009, the Group has entered into an
agreement with HBO Asia to launch and distribute a dedicated
Asian channel “RED by HBO” in different Asian countries and
territories by stages. In 2018, the Group and HBO Asia has
extended the long term exclusive cooperation for 5 years.
Through this collaboration, the Group provides HBO Asia
with Asian contents, i.e. drama series and movies to RED
by HBO. In addition, the Group provides Asian contents to
support HBO GO, the new media business of HBO Asia. This
helped the Group to distribute its contents to Asia and then
the global market. It has also helped the Group to establish its
brand name in the businesses of traditional media, new media
and content provider. Through the cooperation, the Group
receives revenues attributable to various Asian countries and
territories including Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, Philippines,

Vietnam, Myanmar, Cambodia and Laos through different
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platforms including pay TV and new media. We look forward to
distributing the channel in other Asian countries and territories.
The other channels have also provided steadily contributions
to the Group. The Group will continue to explore opportunities

to develop channels with other media platforms.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sub-licensing segment increased
from HK$22.2 million to HK$30.7 million. More licensing
of titles were entered into during the year. The Group also
allocated and contributed an increased amount of resources in
the investment of film production during the year. Certain new
titles are in the progress of production and are expected to
be released to the market in the forthcoming year. These titles
received encouraging responses from the market during their

pre-sale.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to invest and offer its
utmost support in film production industry and aims to invest

in and produce high quality and welcoming films.

Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution. Equipped by the Group’s film
library and through the Group’s experience and network in
program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will continue
to provide high quality and customized programs to its

audiences.

The Group has started to penetrate into the China theatrical
market and established its first theatre in Tianjin since 2011.
The Group’s another theatre in Shanghai has also commenced
operations since 2013. The Group’s theatres are all digital and
equipped with 3-D movie broadcasting functions. The theatre
in Tianjin has 7 screens consisting approximately 1,200 seats
and the one located in Jiading, Shanghai has 10 screens with
approximately 1,600 seats. The theatres contributed revenues
of approximately HK$24.3 million (2017: HK$23.4 million) in
aggregate during the year. The Group is in the progress of
constructing a new theatre in Guangzhou with 9 screens and

approximately 1,300 seats.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

During the year, the Group made provisions for impairment
in respect of its film rights amounting to HK$17.2 million
(2017: HK$18.3 million). The provisions were made taken into
account the current market conditions and estimated future

recoverable amounts in respect of the relevant assets.

During the year, the Group’s operating segment of concert
performance and events organisation contributed revenues
of approximately HK$15.2 million (2017: HK$11.2 million) as
more events were held during the year. During the year, the
Group invested in a number of various concert and events
including A Classic Tour Jacky Cheung World Tour (Macao,
Jinan and Linxia), Jay Chou The Invincible Concert Tour 2
2018 (Hong Kong), Fook Luk Sau 10th Anniversary Concert,
Liza Wang 50th Anniversary The Timeless Concert 2017, Adam
Cheng World Tour in Macau, the 5D musical The Storm Show
and a number of fans meeting with Korean artistes, such as
GFRIEND, EXID and Wanna One. More events invested will
be released in the forthcoming year. The Group is of the view
that this segment will continue to bring increasing input to the
Group.

In respect of the mobile games applications and video online
segment, the Group has launched its video website “www.116.
tv”, which include contents of films, drama and entertainment
news, and also invested in associated companies and a joint
venture company of game development/distribution and online
advertising platforms. Looking forward, the Group considers
the new media investment will ignite a revolution to the

industry and fit the expected market demand.

The Group has signed up to manage the jobs of a number of
artistes and has developed its artiste management business.
The artiste management of the Group started to contribute
revenue of HK$860,000 (2017: Nil) during the year. It becomes
a base to build our talent management business and the Group
will explore to seek other potential artistes and performers in

order to build up its talent pool.

Revenues attributable to sales and distribution of films and
programs in audio and visual product format were minimal for

the year.
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The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely IST Company Limited
(formerly known as Hongkongmovie.com Company Limited)
and its subsidiaries (“IST”). Other than providing channel
management services to the Group, IST also provides the
same playout service plus post-production, HD-film restoration
and internetworking solution to a number of other media
operators. IST has planned to provide its services under
the developing platform which enables clients to distribute
contents in different formats to different ends, which is
expected to contribute future favorable returns to IST and the

Group.

During the year, following the changes in the investment
market conditions, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss turned to record an fair value loss of
approximately HK$4.1 million (2017: gain of HK$4.1 million).
The investment properties portfolio of the Group contributed a
surplus on revaluation of approximately HK$19.3 million (2017:
HK$8.1 million). Such unrealised gains/losses have no effect

on the Group’s cash flow.

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a writ of summons
and statement of claim, which was further amended on 12th
October 2012, 4th April 2014 and 30th March 2017, with no
specified amount of the amount of damages being claimed by
a third party in respect of alleged fraudulent breaches relating
to the management of an associated company which is under
liquidation. The directors of the Company, after taking advice
from the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, consider such claim is not strong, and the
Company has a good chance to defend its position. In this
regard, the directors of the Company do not anticipate any
material liabilities would arise from this litigation and there
would be no material impact to the financial position nor
consolidated financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31st March 2018.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2018, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$79 million, of which approximately HK$46
million were utilised. Corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and certain of the Group’s deposits, financial assets
and properties with aggregate net book values of HK$127
million were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities.
The Group’s gearing ratio of 7.4% as at 31st March 2018
was based on the total of bank loans and obligations under
finance leases of HK$46,354,000 (of which HK$39,758,000,
HK$1,750,000 and HK$4,846,000 are repayable within
one year, in the second year and in the third to fifth year
respectively) and the shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$623,637,000.

The Group’s bank balances and borrowings are primarily
denominated in HK dollars, RMB and NTD. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely. During the
year ended 31st March 2018, the Group did not engage in
any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial

instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency.

At 31st March 2018, the Group had commitments in respect
of film production, film and program licensing agreements and
other investments amounting to approximately HK$139 million
in aggregate. In April 2018, the Group has resolved to dissolve
certain investments and accordingly commitments amounting
to approximately HK$61.3 million were released subsequent to
the year end date. The other commitments will be financed by
the Group’s internal resources and banking and other available

facilities.
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Employees
At 31st March 2018, the Group employed 171 staff (2017:
173). Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on market
trend and individual staff’s performance. In addition to the
basic salaries, staff benefits include discretionary bonus,
medical insurance scheme and contributory provident fund.
The Group also has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company. Employee benefit expenses of HK$47.9 million
(2017: HK$49.5 million) were charged to the profit and loss

during the year.

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H AEEHES
171B(ZE—tF 1 173R)BT - AEEE
HIRMSEBERMENE TRBMTHH o B
EXFEH ETRANEBEMBREAL - BE
REBFTERBERAES - AEETREBR
e SERSHEE B ILEREREL
AL ARG - 8 &8 FIBH X% 47,900,000
BIL(ZZ—t 4 : 49,500,00087T) ERE
REBHE RN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &%

9



10

1
BT -

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERGEEEAEBZEN

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 59, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible
for the corporate strategy and development of the Group.
Mr. Li has been appointed as the member of the 13th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since 2018. He is also the Vice Chairman of the
Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong Kong Limited
since 1998. He is the father of Mr. Li Tang Yuk, an executive

director of the Company.

Mr. Tong Hing Chi, aged 63, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tong has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited since 2001. He has also been appointed
as the member of Hong Kong Film Development Council and
Hong Kong Arts Development Council since April 2015 and
January 2017 respectively.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 33, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He is mainly responsible for the business development
of the new media sector of the Group and its principal
associated company. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education. He is the eldest son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the

Chairman of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Dr. Dong Ming, aged 60, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company with
effect from 1st September 2014. He held master and doctor
degrees from the London School of Economics and Political
Science and has over 25 years’ experience in investment
banking, asset management and corporate management. Prior
to joining the Company, Dr. Dong had been a Senior Managing
Director of Bear Stearns and Director of Merrill Lynch, and
responsible for China marketing and corporate financing.
He also worked as an Executive Director of China Taiping
Insurance Holdings Company Limited and Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (both shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and
responsible for investment management, strategic planning

and merger and acquisition.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 62, was appointed as the
non-executive director of the Company in February 2007 and
is a partner of IDG Capital. He is currently a member of the
board of directors of International Data Group Inc. and a non-
executive director of WPP plc, which is listed on the London
Stock Exchange. Mr. Shong has also been appointed as
the non-executive director of IDG Energy Investment Group
Limited, and HJ Capital (International) Holdings Company
Limited, companies listed on the Stock Exchange, since
August 2016 and September 2017 respectively. Mr. Shong
has also been appointed as an independent director of China
United Network Communications Limited, company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange since February 2018. Mr. Shong

is now the trustee of Boston University.
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Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 71, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST
Inc, a private equity research firm. His business experience in
Asia dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s
role in the consortium which won the government-sponsored
bidding for Hong Kong’s cable tv franchise. He became a
partner in Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and
since that time has played a key role in the development and
continues to be the President and the Chief Operating Officer
and a member of its Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc.,
a Beijing-based card services company which is partnered
with SinoPec Group in China. Over the past decade, he has
also provided consulting and strategic advisory services to a

number of international corporations.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lam Lee G., aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 February 2007.
He holds a BSc in sciences and mathematics, an MSc in
systems science and an MBA from the University of Ottawa
in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in public administration
from Carleton University in Canada, a post-graduate diploma
in English and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law from
Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in law
from the University of Wolverhampton in the UK, a PCLL in
law from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in
Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong SCS, an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong
Kong. A former member of the Hong Kong Bar, Dr. Lam is a
Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow
of CPA Australia, a Fellow of CMA Australia. a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator
of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution, a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and an Honorary Fellow
of the University of Hong Kong School of Professional and

Continuing Education.
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Dr. Lam has over 30 years of multinational general
management, strategy consulting, corporate governance,
investment banking, direct investment and investment fund
management experience, and also serves on the board
of directors, the investment committee and the advisory
committee of a number of publicly-listed companies,
investment funds and non-governmental organizations in the
Asia Pacific region. Having served as a Part-time Member
of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms, a Member
of the Legal Aid Services Council, a Member of the New
Business Committee of the Financial Services Development
Council, a Member of the Derivatives Market Consultative
Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
and a Member of the General Council and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies, Dr. Lam is Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, Non-Executive Chairman
— Hong Kong and ASEAN Region and Chief Adviser to
Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets Asia, a member of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government’s
Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-Industrialization,
the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health, the Council
on Professional Conduct in Education, and the Court of
the City University of Hong Kong, Convenor of the Panel of
Advisors on Building Management Disputes of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government Home Affairs
Department, President of the United Nations Economic and
Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific Sustainable
Business Network Executive Council and Chairman of its Task
Force on Banking and Finance, Chairman of the Permanent
Commission on Economic and Financial Issues of World
Union of Small and Medium Enterprises, a Board member of
Pacific Basin Economic Council, a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Belt and Road Committee and
the Sir Murray MaclLehose Trust Fund Investment Advisory
Committee, Honorary Advisor to the Hong Kong Business
Angel Network, Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA
Australia, Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology
Association of Hong Kong, President of Hong Kong-ASEAN
Economic Cooperation Foundation, a Vice President of the
Hong Kong Real Property Federation, Special Adviser to the
Asia Pacific Real Estates Association, a Board member of the
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce of Hong Kong and the
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Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau,
a founding Board member and the Honourary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Vietnam Chamber of Commerce, Vice Chairman of
the Hong Kong Myanmar Chamber of Commerce, a founding
member of the Hong Kong-Korea Business Council, and a
member of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council.

During the previous year, Dr. Lam was appointed an
independent non-executive director of Huarong Investment
Stock Corporation Limited on 13th September 2017, Xi’an
Haitiantian Holdings Co., Ltd. on 15th September 2017, Hua
Long Jin Kong Company Limited on 29th September 2017,
Kidsland International Holdings Limited on 20th October
2017 and Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited on 17th
May 2018 and a Non-Executive Director of National Arts
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited on 30th June 2017,
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited on 10th
November 2017, and Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited on 1st
January 2018, the shares of all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was also appointed Non-Executive Director of
London listed Adamas Finance Asia Limited on 2nd Oct 2017
and Singapore eDevelopment Limited on 28th November 2017
and independent non-executive director of China Medical
(International) Group Limited on 14th May 2018, the shares
of both of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange. Dr.
Lam resigned as a Non-Executive Director from Hong Kong
listed Roma Group Limited on 11st December 2017 and an
Independent Non-Executive Director from Stuttgart listed
Vietnam Equity Holding on 28th February 2018 and retired as
an Independent Non-Executive Director from Singapore listed
Rowsley Limited on 25th April 2018.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated from
China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984. Mr.
Guo is presently an independent non-executive director of MIE
Holdings Corporation (company listed on the Stock Exchange).
He is also the Chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd. and CNHK
Media Limited. During the year, Mr. Guo resigned as the
independent non-executive director of Strong Petrochemical

Holdings Limited with effective from 1st January 2018.
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Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, aged 62, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
1st March 2016, is an seasoned executive in the information
and communication technologies industry. He has served
Hong Kong Telecommunications (“HKT”) for 34 years and
has held many senior management positions in his tenure of
service. Prior to his retirement at HKT, he was the Managing
Director of Business Processes and responsible for reviewing
and overhauling HKT’s business processes and related
systems. Mr. Leung had also been the Managing Director of
TV & New Media, where he was responsible for now TV, MOOV
and now.com.hk, as well as business development of Internal
Protocol Television (“IPTV”) opportunities internationally.
Mr. Leung joined Cable & Wireless HKT’s multimedia business
unit in 1994. His previous appointments also included the
Executive Vice President of Consumer Marketing & Business,
and responsible for marketing, product development and
management of PCCW'’s consumer telephone and broadband

services.

Mr. Leung had served the Communication Association of
Hong Kong as a member of the Executive Committee from
2006 to 2010. He was also a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council’s Entertainment Industry Advisory

Committee member between 2008 to 2010.

Mr. Leung graduated from the University of Toronto with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1979, and from Canada’s University

of Windsor with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1980.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Lun Ho, aged 48, is the Company Secretary of the
Company and Group’s financial controller and is responsible
for all financial and accounting matters of the Group. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of auditing

and accounting experience. He joined the Group in July 2002.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The principles adopted by the Company emphasise a quality
board, transparency and accountability to shareholders. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Code for the year ended 31st March 2018, with the exception
of the deviations as mentioned below.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to deal with the requirement in respect of the
appointment terms of non-executive directors as required
under the code provision.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2018.
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Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2018, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including four executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Li Tang Yuk and Dr. Dong Ming, two non-executive
Directors — Mr. Hugo Shong and Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, and
three independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lam Lee
G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic.

Biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 15.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. Other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk who is the eldest
son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company, there
is no relationship among members of the Board and the

independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Board of directors (Continued)
The attendance of the directors in the four board meetings and
one general meeting held during the year are set out below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZEE LS
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BEREE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk EEMEE
Dr. Dong Ming EfEL

Mr. Hugo Shong RERECR A

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Dr. Lam Lee G. MREEL
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BEELEE
Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic REIEE

Note:

(@) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of the
Company on the scope and findings of the audit and the
external auditor’s management letter; and (c) to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices,
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the

committee is Dr. Lam Lee G..

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the members
attended the meetings except Mr. Guo Yan Jun was

absent in one of the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2018 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure

have been made.

DA NN
A== ﬁ%

EFXERE

RHHESEERTHE  E=ZSH=-FAES
ZEEXF REEEUELAERAEZRE
HERBESE NMESTHEEREMRS
ZESCHESEN Z2EEFELRE -

(1)

FEEERE
AAREEREMARAFEI21E3.23
HRERIEAEERESHE 2 EREZES -
ERZEECTERER () BHLEE
ZEBBHRE - KB - FHRRPBERE
(b) BE2ZR A B 2 A% BB 5 3R &%Bﬁ%ﬁﬁa
ERER  URIMEZBAHEEE
% &(o)*ﬁ%ﬂxﬁzm’%&gﬁr&%
RIEH - MHEE  ABELERAKRE
BHE BREESHRLARRZ=ZAEL
FPTESMREEL  BRELER
REFEEER - ZEEETFEAMNKE
t o

ZESHARNARBEANFEANRT
g SRREENEHEZ
& HERRELREREEF —RE

rEEBEE-Z-/\F=ZA=1t—-AHL
FEZREERTHES  FELEERX
RERNBERHECHEXEZEEH
Bl 2EEERARSXENETER

S EARARERE R TEEHEDRK

= o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ¥k

19



20

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPOR'I'I}”‘*- JL_A:——

THEE

AHRE

Board Committees (Continued)

(2

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 #% £

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules with written terms of reference. lts
primary duties are to (a) make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management and
the remuneration of non-executive director; (b) establish
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy; (c) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior

management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung
Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lam Lee G..

During the year, the remuneration committee met once
to discuss remuneration related matters. All of the
members attended the meeting. During the meeting, the
performance and remuneration of the executive directors
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed

and approved.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior

management are set out in notes 11 and 38 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties
are to: (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assess
the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, and two executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and
Mr. Tong Hing Chi. The chairman of the committee is
Mr. Guo Yan Jun. The nomination committee determined
the policy for the nomination of directors and the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met once,
Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak
Sing, Dominic attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when

necessary.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 40 to 48. Amount of approximately
HK$1,660,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st March 2018 in
respect of the audit service provided by the auditor of the

Company.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management of the Company has monitored the strategic plan
and performance, established ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group, and set up a set of comprehensive policies, standards
and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuing the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the

occurrence of fraud and errors.

The following procedures have been established in connection
with the risk management and internal controls within the

Group:-

1. Control environment including organization structure,

limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities;

2. Risk management self-assessment and internal control
review conducted from time to time by the internal audit

function and external auditor of the Group;

3. Appropriate risk management measures such as written

policies and procedures;

4.  Effective information platforms to facilitate internal and

external information flow; and

5.  Any material internal control defects will be reported to
and discussed by the Audit Committee and the Board,
and management to investigate and take appropriate

measures to respond to and migrate the defects.
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TEERRE

Risk Management and Internal Controls
(Continued)

The Board has performed an annual review on the

effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal

controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31st March 2018 with no material issues noted and the

Board consider them effective and adequate.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the inside information can be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in

accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Right

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Right (Continuea)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii) must
be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.

EXERRE
BB R i B AR AR )

BREAQAB 2 ARDME - REKXS A HER
MEFIUERR(REXFREREFEELRD
ARRAELAARERZCHERAEH
TORT D2 )EBBEHERMBREM - &%
ERASFBERAEZEN  YHFRAE
ENETMBE - HEBRERBHERFER
EHERF -+t -HREXBHRBIRRER
RE AIBERAXGHRARAZBRER -
FULHNEMALTREELESERAS
ZHEEEXERRRERAE -

H—BEREEABIYRNE LR EA R
REATZBRREBERE L AL(RE
ANDRBREASESBEEES BIFEAED
AARZERRREERREAMBAIE
M- BHAGNERBEHERRRAREES
ZEEB; (VS EHE EHHEIE13.512) 1%
FiIREBRBAZBAENRABKRFES &
(VN EHZEIRZBREREE LEEA
HEREBZRRED2ER X4 RBEER
ABERABREAEZSERBEEAHREBAE
R EXBAZHBZELAELA > MEE
xLiquHF'ﬁEE$"T§§ RIETE RIBEET
ZREZBHERBTE  BZBRTEE
E\E%EE BEIRTER&ER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ¥k

25



26

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2018.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st
March 2018 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 4 to 9 to this annual report. Description
of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed
in this Annual Report.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 49.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties
are set out on pages 199 to 200.

Share issued in the year

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31st March
2018 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2018, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$210,615,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$24,405,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
198.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to directors and employees, consultants,
agents, advisers, customers, suppliers, business and
joint venture partners or any employee thereof, of the
Company, its subsidiaries and its associated companies
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Group by aligning the interest of option holders to
shareholders of the Company.

(b) Participants

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the
“Board”) may offer to grant share options (the “Options”)
to any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner or
any employee thereof, of the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associated companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as
the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. Subject to the provisions of
the Listing Rules and applicable law and other regulations
from time to time in force, the Board’s administrative
powers include the authority, in its discretion:-

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme;

(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the

Listing Rules and the law, the time of the grant of
Options;

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED % SE iR 4 & 5 & B B BR 2 &

FRRxERT &
ARARER-F-NEAA-BETZR
SR AR £ R — B R BT R
AED) o ERHERBWIIMT

(a)

(b)

(c)

Z):p
BREFESERIRRERESA
7T HHBRREAKREEBEREAARQF
HWBLARARBMEQNRZES - EE -
B R FAA TR HER
EBRECEBHIHERBREREEIM
B REBSTERERE AN EER
RARRAZ - REAEEREE
B ERIRR T o

sgmE
RIBBRESEZHRAREBHERS
FRERARFEZ ERARAT ERHRRD)
CEELEHRBRRT  ESS(ES
ENUEHEAZERNBREZALT
HNBARRBEQAAZEMNESERE
B Ef - RE FHA FF #E
B EBRAERFTAERERAD
RERHBRE(BRED) ZZEQ -

THREEER
ExeaEEEBERESS - EBT L
T 152 Bl R AN B A RUE A BI A EAl £ SR
MRET  ESENTREEENERE
HEBITREUTSENED © —

() FERBBRETSRLBRET
AEEEREARA

(iy FELEWRAFEPBRET » REM
R BB AR A



REPORT.OF.THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme (Continued)
(c) Administration (Continued)

(iii)

(vii)

to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option
Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any
Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the subscription price;

° the Option Period, which shall be not greater
than the period prescribed by the Listing Rules
from time to time (which is, as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, a
period of 10 years from the date of grant);

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it vests or
becomes exercisable in whole or in part (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify
any minimum holding period);

° the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not
specify any performance target);

° the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within
which payments must be made;

° the period, if any, during which Shares allotted
and issued upon exercise of the Option shall
be subject to restrictions on dealings, and the
terms of such restrictions;

to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme;

to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme,
including rules and regulations relating to sub-
schemes established for the purpose of qualifying
for preferred treatment under foreign laws and for
benefits intended solely for any particular type of
Qualifying Grantees; and
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

M)

(9)

Administration (Continued)

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of
the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned for
a period of 28 days from the date of the offer (or such
longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the Subscription Price Reference
Date; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
Subscription Price Reference Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Option Period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant Option.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share
Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Overriding Limit

The limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(iii) below, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, being
563,303,452 Shares (the “Initial Mandate Limit”),
based on 5,633,034,525 issued Shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%
limit.

Refreshing of Mandate Limit

The Company may by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules to
the Shareholders before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (the “Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with any of the schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

EEEHE

SRR EsT® (=)
(h BEREADNETZEERHARE

()

(ii)

(iii)

EERH
REBBRESERAQTEAHAM
FEIR RS ARITE 2 BRELE
BOERTTFRITZROBH - T
SERBTHCBTRMDZ30% -
KRR B NERBAEM R B EM
SEHBHRBANBRE -

BIEREE

MR EXXE (h() D BRFTIREE R £
T3 (h)(ili) 2 R AT IS M ERT IR A8
PREEESHEZAT - RIBHBRES
BIRAQNTMEMEME B EEE
BB EITER FEITZRMG
WY SHFEEBEMNBREST
EEHNEBRTRMOMN10% » B
563,303,452 % B 17 ([ ¥ R 1% 1E PR
) ZBREBRBENEREST
212 HE 81T 1% 5,633,034,525
BRDETE o RIBERETEIRE
AT E A 5T E AR & KAV BB IR
o B EZI10%RER TS
FTEER -

BT E
ARBHRRBESBEREBERE
RIRMERREE - MESRARALERM
MABBRRBHBR - BRAE L
MARABRENER - R - EEE
AIRRBE(ERTRERE D TRE
RAB A ERONBRELE
FTERTTFRITHRDAH - T
SEBHEETRERBEEACH
TR 210% ° AR &5t 8l
RENBREEERTE E
i ERBEMEIXYRETHE
MEBKRE)  EfEEETRER
BREHEER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ¥k

31



32

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv) Grant to specifically identified Qualifying

(v)

Grantees

Specifically identified Qualifying Grantees may be
granted Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The
Company may in addition seek separate approval
by its Shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided that
the Options in excess of the limit are granted only
to Qualifying Grantees specifically identified by the
Company and a circular containing such information
as required by the Listing Rules is issued to the
Shareholders before such approval is sought.

Limit for each Qualifying Grantee

The number of Options that can be granted to any
Qualifying Grantee during any 12-month period shall
be subject to the restriction that the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in such 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Where any further grant of Options
to a Qualifying Grantee would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant shall
be subject to separate approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting with the relevant Qualifying
Grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall
issue a circular containing such information as
required by the Listing Rules to the Shareholders.

As at 31st March 2018, the number of securities

available for issue under the Share Option Scheme

was 592,311,452, having approximately 9.99% of
5,9283,738,525, being the number of issued shares of the
Company at 31st March 2018 and the date of the annual

report respectively.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

Movements of the share options granted under the Share

Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
Mr. Tong Hing Chi
Mr. Li Tang Yuk
Dr. Dong Ming

Mr. Hugo Shong
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford
Dr. Lam Lee G.
Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic

Employees of

— the Group

— An associated company

Other participants

Details of the share options granted were set out in note 25 to

EE

TR EE
BEMEE
TEBEE
EHEL

Alan Cole-Ford %4
T ]

BEHEE KL
REREHE

s
~ A M
~BELT

Hit2 8%

W

the consolidated financial statements.

SRR EsT® (=)
ERRE MR B AR BT

Number of options

MkRESE

Outstanding
at the Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
beginning during during during  at the end
of the year the year the year the year of the year
REMKRTE FREH FRITE FREY RELRRTE
6,500,000 — —  (6,500,000) —
6,500,000 — —  (6,500,000) -
4,560,000 — —  (4,560,000) —
6,500,000 — —  (6,500,000) —
1,500,000 — —  (1,500,000) -
1,500,000 - —  (1,500,000) —
1,500,000 - —  (1,500,000) —
1,500,000 - —  (1,500,000) —
15,846,000 — — (15,846,000) —
4,566,000 — —  (4,566,000) —
5,570,000 — —  (5,570,000) —
56,042,000 — — (56,042,000) —

BRAES B 2FH B RN GRS B KRMEE25 -
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Directors of the Company
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (Managing Director)
Mr. Li Tang Yuk

Dr. Dong Ming

Non-executive directors
Mr. Hugo Shong
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lam Lee G.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s
business

Other than those set out in the paragraph headed “Connected

transactions”, no other transactions, arrangements and

contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries

was a party and in which a director of the Company had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests

EEEHE

EFRESTHRASRELF -

and/or short positions in the shares, EAFEMAREERESEMEM
underlying shares and debentures of the HBEEZ B {n - HERB 7 & R
Company or any specified undertaking REZHEER ke

of the Company or any other associated

corporation
At 31st March 2018, other than the interests of the directors in
the share options granted during the year as disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”, the interests
and short positions of each director and chief executive in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the

RZZB-NE=ZA=+—-0 RESRER
ERTBRERBRESS I -REE) 2
R REBARQFMKEZFRPEHRD (=
ZRABEHRH DEXVEEIRGAFEZE
RMALSENBEAQAREZERN  TES
RESTHRABEARR AR EBEEER(RE
ZRBMERGI2ER) 2D - HERGORE

register required to be kept by the Company under Section RETE 2
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the HRRBWOT -

Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

(a) SEREEOC.2EBTZFAF HER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

Number of shares beneficially held

at 31st March

— Long position 2018
EaRACcERMBA — ¥8 R-Z—I\F
Personal Family Corporate =A=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests EELTERT
EENE BAES FEER EEES BFzEaSL
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 349,377,500 189,843,750 2,463,927,550 50.70%
ZEEEE Note (i) Note (ii)
BIEE () BIEE (i)
Mr. Tong Hing Chi 16,875,000 — — 0.28%
BEERLE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk 1,940,000 — — 0.03%
ZEMBEE
Dr. Dong Ming 5,000,000 — — 0.08%
EHELT
Notes: et -
()  These shares are held by Ms. Li Pik Lin, the spouse of )y ZERVEZTEHELEZRBZTZE
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing. BELtiER -
(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited, iy ZEROVHZEHEEEERZHZ

a company beneficially controlled by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

=R -

A® Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking
of the Company or any other associated
corporation (Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

EFRESTRASRELF -
FAFMEMSERGREMEM
HBEEZ R - HERRG R R
HEcHRR WikA@)

(b) FLFIMBLARER
FEALEBAFETIMBELRAER
E{E 1B ERFEIELERD

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FRiSERRIE

EIER Dz 8 B

Personal interests

Name =8 BAES
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EuYERERRAA 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited ERMEBRLF 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnHEEERRA A 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED % SE iR 4 & 5 & B B BR 2 &
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and/
or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st
March 2018, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of
the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company

Ho Chi Sing {7

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P.
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.
Zhou Quan EZ&

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P.

Li Pei Chin ZX&A]

Notes:
(@) Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in note (b).
(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the

307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund
L.P.

Note

(b)
(b)

EEEHE

FERRNAELXFZG R HER
BRigZHESR Rk

RIERSRBERGIEXVEEI6HRAFE
ZEIERRBTMETR R-ZE-NF=A
=t—B ARAEEBMUTTERRE
BEARBCBITRALS% H £z EH KK
R REEBRLXFHBERHESRES
ITHABEUIN 2R -

o

SEREEO0.02EITZF AT HEE
Number of shares — Long position
EiH#A — 8

% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as

Corporate at 31st March

interests 2018

RZB—\F

=RA=+-—H

GEELXTE BT

EEED BFEFZHSL

398,840,000 6.73%

370,205,516 6.25%

370,205,516 6.25%

370,205,516 6.25%

307,385,666 5.19%

334,042,000 5.64%
M -

(a) B¥EFIEE(b) FTEl2 370,205,516 B AR 17 ©
(b) 3IERE — B % K B FEIDG-Accel China

Growth Fund L.P.3#5%H 2 307,385,666 %
B o
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 39%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 85%
Sales

— the largest customer 16%
— five largest customers in aggregate 54%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

On 9th June 2017, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the
Company, to form a joint venture company intended primarily
to invest in motorsports entertainment business at equity
and loan commitments of HK$1,000 and HK$3,000,000
respectively. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9th June 2017.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2018 is set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of
this report.
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Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on
pages 16 to 25.

Directors’ interests in competing business
None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th June 2018
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pwc

To the Shareholders of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Mei Ah Entertainment
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 49 to 197, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2018;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
We considered “Impairment of film rights” as a key audit
matter that was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on this matter.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Impairment of film rights
Refer to notes 2.10, 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31st March 2018, the carrying amounts of film rights
were HK$34,119,000.

In view of the box office performance of the film right
distribution during the year was below expectation,
management performed an impairment assessment for film
rights as at 31st March 2018 and the carrying values were
written down to their recoverable amounts, which were
measured at the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and

value in use.

Management determined the recoverable amounts by using
value in use approach, which were calculated based on
present value of future cash flows directly generated by
the film rights. The forecast of future cash flows involved
judgements regarding the future cash inflows generated
from forecast revenue, which included types of revenue
streams that the film rights could be distributed, the number
of and duration of planned circulations and expected cash
outflows for the costs for these circulations and distributions.
Impairment of film rights recognised for the year ended 31st
March 2018 amounted to HK$17,175,000.

We consider the impairment assessment of film rights as a key
audit matter due to the significant judgements and estimates

made by management on the recoverability of the film rights.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of film rights (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls over
the recoverability assessment performed by management on
the film rights.

We assessed the methodology used by management in
determining the recoverable amounts with reference to the
industry practice.

We compared the fair value less costs of disposal determined
by the management to available information through market
research and compared the value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal in determining the recoverable amounts of
the film rights.

We evaluated and challenged management’s assessment
on the expected revenue to be generated by the film rights
based on historical data and our knowledge on the market
and industry. We tested the expected revenue from circulation
and distribution of the film rights by comparing with market
information (including box office income) of other similar types
of films in the market and sales agreements entered into

subsequent to the year end.

We also evaluated and challenged management’s assumptions
of the estimated circulation and distribution costs to be
incurred by comparing the ratio of these budgeted costs to
the budgeted revenue with other comparable films based on

historical data of similar films and industry research.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key assumptions
for forecast revenue and estimated circulation and distribution
costs and considered the extent of change in those

assumptions that would result in impairment.

Based on the procedures performed, we found significant
judgements and estimates made by management on the
recoverability of the film rights to be supportable based on the
available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th June 2018
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains — net

Selling, distribution and marketing
expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income — net
Share of losses of associates — net
Share of loss of a joint venture

Provision for impairment of a joint
venture

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

The notes on pages 57 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED.INCOME STATEMENT
RE SR

Note

Htat
e 5
SHER A 7
EF
=N 5
Higlz — H58 6
HE BITRMBERERX

7
THERIX 7
EBEEHS
B U A 8
=Y %N 8
BN — FEE
EEHBE N BBE — F5 16
i —BEeEhEEE 17
SEMERERE

17
SRR AT of ]
Fri8fipx 9
FREE
518 B EGESIE :
RATHEE A
JEE RS
EATFIEEAEGESRER
BREARR #EEE 10

BED -

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2018 2017
—E—N\EFE —Z2—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
114,500 100,091
(90,326) (92,112)
24,174 7,979
13,173 16,706
15,244 31,679
(12,616) (23,892)
(86,165) (116,877)
(46,190) (84,405)
821 1,314
(286) (234)

535 1,080
(1,942) (949)
(1,902) (797)
(282) —
(49,781) (85,071)
(1,442) (396)
(51,223) (85,467)
(49,159) (82,259)
(2,064) (3,208)
(51,223) (85,467)
HK cents HK cents
El JEAL
(0.83) (1.39)

EESTENTECHERFGEEMBHRR B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EEBER

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income,
net of tax:

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of buildings

Items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss

Fair value losses on available-for-sale
financial assets — net

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Currency translation differences

Release of exchange reserve upon
disposals of subsidiaries

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

FABR

Htt2E(ER) KE
MFRIRNIEA -

TEEHN T EERm %
ZIEH

BFEHAH

BFEHRBREE
ZIEFERLTH

HEH S B E 2B
AR ENREES ARE
e — 55

A B R B L 1
ERE A

£ Y ) R AR Y

E 33 ht 1

FREM2E(ER) e
MRRNEA

FAEZEGRENE

THREEE2EEIREH :

RRBEEA
FEEEIR

FRARXEHRER

The notes on pages 57 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1—HLEE

2018 2017
—E—N\fF —E—LF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
btaE F&iT FET
(51,223) (85,467)
13(a) 5,906 1,964
29 (819) (380)
20(a) (3,214) (1,474)
50 —
(9,994) 5,435
— (244)
(8,071) 5,301
(59,294) (80,166)
(57,939) (77,693)
(1,355) (2,473)
(59,294) (80,166)
FEETR17TEZMF ARG BEHRR 2B

EERD



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEEERRER

As at 31st March

R=B=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—tF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
btaE F&iT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE Tt b E AR 12 25,720 26,508
Property, plant and equipment M - R RE 13 184,813 179,280
Investment properties REMZE 14 241,486 218,504
Film rights, films in progress and film EXRE BEPEZR
royalty deposits B MERS 15 176,176 148,268
Interests in associates REENT 2 EE 16 11,121 12,944
Interests in joint ventures AEEREER 17(a) 4 2,188
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMKERE 20(a) 3,498 6,712
Other receivables and deposits BEMERFERZES 22 5,918 4,757
648,736 599,161
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 21 179 238
Trade and other receivables g5 KN EMmEWFIE 22 44,254 29,464
Amounts due from associates FE U B N B FRIE 16 — 13,757
Amounts due from joint ventures EWE & hERIE 17(a) - 5,015
Financial assets at fair value through RAREFABRTRZH
profit or loss KEE 20(b) 41,922 46,011
Pledged bank deposits EIEARITER 19(b) 23,500 23,500
Short-term bank deposits FEHIERATE K 23 1,856 2,258
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkERHBEEER 23 55,406 123,585
167,117 243,828
Total assets waEE 815,853 842,989
EQUITY ga
Equity attributable to owners of the FXTFHEAEERRS
Company
Share capital [N 24 118,475 118,475
Share premium BR 10 = 1E 24 407,428 407,428
Reserves fH & 26 97,734 155,673
Shareholders’ funds RERES 623,637 681,576
Non-controlling interests FFERER 4,691 6,046
Total equity HER 628,328 687,622
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEEBER

As at 31st March

52

®W=R=+—H
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Biat F#ET FET
LIABILITIES &R\
Non-current liabilities ERDAR
Borrowings BE 28(a) 6,452 7,789
Obligations under finance leases Eﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ 28(b) 144 312
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFIEFHERs 29 24,445 22,822
31,041 30,923
Current liabilities mEN &R
Trade and other payables B o R HMEMANRE 27 78,434 77,568
Receipts in advance FE Uk FhIE 25,458 34,005
Amounts due to associates FE{SEEE N B FIE 16 1,834 —
Borrowings BE 28(a) 39,590 1,441
Obligations under finance leases RERANEE 28(b) 168 236
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHAas 11,000 11,194
156,484 124,444
Total liabilities HaRE 187,525 155,367
Total equity and liabilities HESRAR 815,853 842,989
The notes on pages 57 to 197 are an integral part of these FEE7TE197H s ARG ERET 2B

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the

Board of Directors on 28th June 2018 and were signed on its

behalf.

RERR1D o

GREMERRNR=B—NFAA=+/N\HE
BEEHE  TREES o

Director Director
EE =
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FZERA BB
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
T T

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAERARE
Available-
for-sale
Share- financial
based assets
Share payment Buidings  revaluation
redemption reserve revaluation reserve Non-
Share Share reserve WhH  Contibuted  Exchange reseve  AHEE  Accumulated  controling Total

captd  pemum  RREA  AEEZ suphs  diference ~ BFEfE  HEEE losses ~ Interests equity
BE  RfEE B fMEE 8RR EREE BE  EMRE  ZBE  fERES s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
-4 - -4 7 7Er 741 7A1 FA1 741 FA1 741

Balance at 1st April 2016 RIE-REMA-RZER 18475 4748 12 12178 189,009 4,358 1,464 THY (50T 651 750900
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - - R (3208 (85461)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ XM2TEHE/(E#)
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BTEfER

fote 136) (19) - - - - - - - - T
Deferred taxation arising from BrEfROEL
revaluation surplus of buldings LELRE
ote 29 (Wi29) - - - - - - 0 - - - (80
Fair value losses on avaleble-for-sale ~ THEEKER L
financial assets - net (note 20(2) DAESE - 8
Wz204) - - - - - - - - -
Currency translation ifferences HHBEEE
~ Group - k&R - - - - - 4701 - - - 735 5,436
— Associates (nofe 16) - BeNdWz) - - - - - 1) - - - - ]
— Release of exchange resenve upon - HEMBATEEH
disposals of subsidiaries EfGE - - - - - (244 - - - - (244
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) £tk / (58)4E - - - - - 4,456 1,584 (1474 - 7% 5,301
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ 2EkA/(BHR)H - - - - - 4,456 1,584 (1474 (82.259) 47y (80,166)
Share options forfeted BRYzERE - - - (317) - - - - 317 - -
Derecogniton of non-controllng inerests  HENBATARL
upon disposals of subsidiaries BREERER - - - - - - - - - 7,868 7,868
Total transactions with owners, EREACRARE
recognised directly in equity ERRERNR - - - (317) - - - - 37 7868 7868
Balance at 31st March 2017 R2B-tE
SRAEt-RAeER 118,475 407,428 12 11,861 189,009 8814 73,048 5,645 (132,716) 6,046 667,622
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE{&_I_N EQUITY
GAEREHE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLTRBARLE
Available-
for-sale
Share- financial
based assets
Share ~ payment Buildings  revaluation
redemption reserve revaluation reserve Non-
Share Share reserve BB  Contributed  Exchange reserve TRIHE Accumulated  controlling Total
capital  premiom  BABE  BEMC  sumpls  difference  HFEH  HEEE losses  interests equity
ks  RhaR BF  ABER  EABR  ERER BF  EGER  AMER  AHRES aha
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1st April 2017 RE-tEMA-RCER 118,475 407,428 12 11,861 189,009 8,814 73,048 5,645 (182,716) 6,046 687,622
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - - (49,159) (2064 (61,229)
Other comprehensive (loss)fincome R 2E(EH) k&
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BTEfER
(note 13(3) (it 136) - - - - - - 5906 - - - 5,906
Deferred taxation arising from BrEfRaE:
revaluation surplus of buldings ELRE
ote 29 (Wi29) - - - - - - 19 - - - 19
Fair valug losses on avallable-for-sale T EEHER
financial assets - net (note 20(a) IERE-
ERz20) - - - - - - - (3214 - - (3.214)
Impairment losses on avaiable-forsele ~ THHEHKER
financial assets (note 6) HEEEM6)
Curency translation differences ERAEEE - - - - - - - 50 - - 5
- Group - 558 - - - - - (10822) - - - M {0113
— Associates (nofe 16) - BeNAE ) - - - - - 119 - - - - 119
Total other comprehensive (loss)income ~ Et27 (518) /s - - - - - (10,703) 5,087 (3164 - 709 60m)
Total comprehensive (oss)fincome 2 (BH)/hEEH - - - - - (10,703) 5,087 (3164 (49,159) (13585 (59,294)
Share options lapsed BRNZERE - - - (11,861) - - - - 11,861 - -
Total transactions with owners, BREACRREE
recognised directly in equity ERRERNR - - - (11,861) - - - - 11,861 - -
Balance at 31st March 2018 R23-I\§
ZBZt-B2ER 415 dordze f2 S BN (189 T ot (00 481 6808
The notes on pages 57 to 197 are an integral part of these ESTE197E BN GEMERR 2
consolidated financial statements. BE R4 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Incorporation of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of interests
in associates

Incorporation of a joint venture

Acquisition of a joint venture

Cash outflows arising from disposals
of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Change in short-term bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

BEXBZEARE

LEARE
B PSS

REXBHARTFRE

RREDZESRE

BEMZE - KERRE

HEME - R RKRE
Z SRR
BEENE BRP
EXNETRERZRS
—BEBE QR EMAK L
HERBE QR 2 EE
Z G FRE
—BaghEIMRAL
WE-—Beshx
HEMBLARESE
ZRERE
HERQAEFABRER
ZHBEEZFREHEA

BHRRTERES
WS

REBHFTAREFEE

Note
btaE

30(a)

30(c)

16

17
17

23

e T MER

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1—HLFEE

2018 2017
—E—\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
(2,853) (54,416)
(1,094) (63)
(3,947) (54,479)
(6,488) (1,501)
158 —
(97,203) (48,788)
- (5)

- 8,808

- 4)

— (5,500)

- (595)

— 383

402 (2,258)

821 1,012
(102,310) (48,448)
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CONSOLIDATED GASH FLOW STATEMENT

n‘/-.r\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbiﬁ

Year ended 31st March
BEFE=A=1—HLFEE

2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
btaE F&iT FET
Cash flows from financing activities MREZFEBIZHERE
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERZMERIE 30(b) 19,500 —
Repayments of bank loans BERITER 30(b) (1,652) (1,367)
Interest paid on loans ENERAE 8 (270) (225)
Repayments of capital element of EERERN 2 ERIDH
finance leases 30(b) (236) (202)
Interest paid on finance leases MERNZEMFFIE 8 (16) 9)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEFEE(FiA)
financing activities REFE 17,326 (1,803)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRERATRLERARDFHE
equivalents (88,931) (104,730)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHZREREERELIER
of year 123,585 228,592
Exchange differences [E 5 =58 2,369 (277)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end F¥ZH&RERRELIEH
of year 37,023 123,585
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRkERREHEE
cash equivalents 43580
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERREER 23 55,406 123,585
Bank overdrafts RITEX 28 (18,383) —
37,023 123,585
The notes on pages 57 to 197 are an integral part of these BETR1TH 2 MFARGETBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. BSR4 o

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, theatre operations,
concert performance and events organisation,
mobile games applications and video online, artiste
management, sales and distribution of films and
programs in audio visual product format, and property

investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2018.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the

Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

e R R MR

—iE#
EDREENEBBRAR(A2F])
REMBAR(RBE A5EH ) EERSE
ERER  EXHM - EXMERER
BE Thx® BESREWEDH -
FRESEAEARESRAE BAE
B CURTERTEAEERRTER
EIEURERE -

AATARBRETMRIZBERA
A EEFMSEE 2 ik A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

RARARBERBMERZMARAT L

m o

il

BRIESAHE  BRIRGRESPBHRERA
Br(BT)23  EFER-F-N
FERAZ T NBHETBREGREBBR
% o

EESHBRAE

LEMERHERZEFEMBEHRREGR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

Amendments to standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments to standards and annual
improvements are mandatory for the first time for

the financial year beginning 1st April 2017:

° Amendments to HKAS 7, “Statement of cash
flows”

° Amendments to HKAS 12, “Income taxes”

° Annual improvements 2014-2016 —
Amendments to HKFRS 12, “Disclosure of

interest in other entities”

The Group has adopted these standards and
the adoption of these standards did not have
a significant impact on the Group’s results and

financial position.

There are no other new standards or amendments
to standards that are effective for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1st April
2017 that are expected to have a material impact

on the Group.

e R R MR

2 BESHHREE®

2.1

RREEE)

21.1 Bt RELERBEF

(a)

ETEEFRBAZEREET

T EAMEIT R FESGERBE R
Z—tFENB-BRRZVRFE
BREEIERA

e EBBHERAETHRZMBT
[BEREx]

o EBABEMEAF12F 2B
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HinEge o s ]

AEBOHEAZSER - MLEY
REBE 2 RER BRI ES K

=47
o= °

TMEMN—F— LEMA — AR
2 4Bt BT R A TR
B AEEEEATE > A
HAEREET -

59



60

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations that have been issued but not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the t- 4

Group

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31st March 2018 reporting periods

and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 1
BB SR E 2R
F158 2185

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BRMBIREER
5B 255 Z187T

Amendments to HKFRS 4

BRMBREER
B A ZBRT

HKFRS 9 (note i)
BB BERELER
B (MALI)

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BB IR E %R
B9 ZIERT

First Time Adoption of HKFRS
BIRERANE B I 3RS R

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions
URGDBERZARRZ 2o ERTE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

BEEBYBRELENE 4R RIEEN ]
FEREBMBRELERFEIRIMHHETA |

Financial Instruments
BT A

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
BEEEMEZRANVHRETE

REEEE)
21.1 B REESERIEE (E)

2 BESHHREE®

(b) ERfFEARMKENAFRBXERE
BHRBZHETER - ERIEITR

& TS ERRREEEM
HR—ZE—-N\FE=ZA=+—HFK
ZHREHEEARBHER - FARE
REBIE PR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RUTHERz#
FA%ia iz 5 BT HA R & 3
1st January 2018
—Z2-N\%—HA-A

1st January 2018

—®-NE-A-H

1st January 2018

—E2—-N\F—HF—H

1st January 2018
—Z2-N\§—A—H

1st January 2019

—Z2-hE-A-H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

#sE)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

HKAS 28
BERUMBEREENE 105 R
BB THER
HKFRS 15 (note ii)

BB RS ER

E A5 (Hratii)

Amendments to HKFRS 15

BB B IREERIE 165%2187]

HKFRS 16 (note iii)
BB IR EEL
16 5% (Mt iii)

HKFRS 17
BBMBRELREAT7HR

Amendments to HKAS 28
BBETERE 285 2 185T

Amendments to HKAS 28

BBETERE 2858 2 185]

56 28 5% 2 1EFT

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REHZHEHBENASEECECRHZEE
HEREE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BEEEHKE

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
BERVEHREEAE 1555 28T

Leases
HE

Insurance Contracts

RERE#

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
REBEERAREERCEZRE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures
REENRAREECEREAER

RREEE)
21.1 B R ELSERI%EE (E)

2 BESHHREE®

(b) ERffARMKENAERBXERE
BHRBZHETER - ERIEITR 2

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RLUTHEERZ#&
Rz FEHMER

Note

EES

1st January 2018
—E2-N\¥—HF—H

1st January 2018

—ZE-N\F¥—A—H

1st January 2019

=—E-N%—-A—H

1st January 2021

—E-—F-p—0

1st January 2018
—Z2-N\%¥—HA—-AH

1st January 2019

—2-hHF—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

policies (Continued)

2.1

Summary of significant accounting

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations that have been issued but not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40
BRETERE 4055 2185T

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

&8 (BB KR ERE
ZEE) — F22%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
B8 (BB ERE2E
ZE®) — F235%

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

—E-RHFEE—tHF
Bz FEDGEER

Note:To be announced by HKICPA

Transfers of Investment Property

HEREREME

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration
HMERZRIEFRE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

RSB EE 2 FHREM

Improvements to HKFRSs

BRMBHREERBCEER

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new

standards and interpretations is set out below.

2 BESHHREE®

21 WEEEE)
21.1 B REESERIEE (E)

(b) ERfFEARMKENAFRBXERE
BHRBZHETER - ERIEITR
#BE)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RLUTHEERZ#&
iRz FEHMEN

1st January 2018
—E-N\§—-A—H

1st January 2018

—2-N\F—-A—H

1st January 2019
—E-NF-A—H

1st January 2019

—Z-—nFE—F—H

Kt - GEBEMAS QM

T XEH A EEE ZEHER R
REZTEETZE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting

and a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact
The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact from

the adoption of the new standard on 1st April 2018:

The financial assets held by the Group include:

° equity instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale (“AFS”) for which a fair
value through other comprehensive income

(“FVOCI”) election is available, and

° equity investments currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) which will
continue to be measured on the same basis
under HKFRS 9.

e R R MR

2 BESHHREE®

21 WEEEE)
21.1 B R ELSERI%EE (E)

(b) ERffARMKENAERBXERE
BHRBZHETER - ERIEITR 2
BE

() BBHBEEENEORBHT
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BHIE
BB ISR 5 R O ML BT RS
SERMBAEZHE  HERK
IR - BIA SRR TR R B
HAE 2R B -
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sFARMmEENE ) 2R
=]

63



64

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets. However,
gains or losses realised on the sale of financial
assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to
profit or loss on sale, but instead reclassified
below the line from the FVOCI reserve to retained

earnings.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss
and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement and have not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the
accounting for hedging instruments more closely
with the Group’s risk management practices. As
a general rule, more hedge relationships might
be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard

introduces a more principles-based approach.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts attributable to forward points,
and in the time value of the option contracts, will
in future be deferred in a new costs of hedging
reserve within equity. The deferred amounts will be
recognised against the related hedged transaction

when it occurs.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting

as it does not involve any hedging instruments.

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (“ECL”) rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments
and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based
on the assessments undertaken to date, the Group
does not expect significant increase or decrease in

the loss allowance in relation to its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

(ii)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of

the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1st April 2018. The Group
intends to adopt the standard from its effective

date.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Nature of change
The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the

recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and

the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or

service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a

modified retrospective approach for the adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group’s financial
statements. More detailed assessment will be
carried out by the Group to estimate the impact of
the new rules on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1st April 2018. The Group
intends to adopt the standard from its effective

date.

HKFRS 16 Leases
Nature of change
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will

result in almost all leases being recognised on

the consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are

short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly

change.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b)

(iii)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$90,350,000. The Group
estimates those related to payments for short-term
and low-value leases which will be recognised on
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss
are insignificant.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what
other adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options.
It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on adoption of the
new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1st April 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRFREBE®R)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 HFERARESERE

2.2.1Subsidiaries 22.1H 8 4 &

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the

Group (refer to note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and balance sheet

respectively.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control
or joint control. This is generally the case
where the Group holds between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (note 2.2.4), after initially being
recognised at cost.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has both joint
operations and joint ventures.

(a) Joint operations
The Group recognises its direct right
to the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of joint operations and its share
of any jointly held or incurred assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. These
have been incorporated in the financial
statements under the appropriate
headings. Details of the joint operation

are set out in note 17.

(b) Joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (see note
2.2.4), after initially being recognised at

cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@

policies (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 HFERARESEREE)
(Continued)

2.2.4 Equity accounting 22428 5%

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and
the Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying

amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on

behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in note
2.11.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within equity

attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as

specified/ permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from

a contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in

the subsidiary.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired

entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the

acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous

equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement

are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRFREBE®R)
policies (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.6 SEmH(E)

KRELE

(c) Group companies (c)

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive

income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as

part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ¥ BBRREH

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recognised at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease, or 50 years,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10
improvements years, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve

are transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and

that is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are

presented in profit or loss as part of other income.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets

acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating

segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken

annually or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The

carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill

is compared to the recoverable amount, which is

the higher of value in use and the fair value less

costs of disposal.

Any impairment is recognised

immediately as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.

2.10 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The cost
of film rights is mainly apportioned between
the film exhibition and local or oversea
licensing. In the case of the former, the cost
is expensed on first public exhibition, and in
the latter, the cost is expensed at a systematic
basis with reference to the underlying license
periods, which are subject to annual review by

Executive Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenues
generated by these films. The balance of
film production costs not yet due at the end
of each reporting period are disclosed as
commitments. Costs of films are transferred to

film rights upon completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(c)

Film royalty deposits

License fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under
the licensing agreements is disclosed as a
commitment. Upon receipt of the audio visual
products and the materials, the deposits would
be transferred to film rights and the remaining
payable balances will be recorded as a liability.
Provision for impairment loss is made against
deposits to the extent that film rights will not
be received and the deposit is not recoverable

in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise
its rights under a licensing agreement because
the film producer fails to complete the film, the
Group writes off the difference between the
advances made and the estimated recoverable

amount from the film producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal

and external market information are considered

to assess whether there is any indication that film

rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits

are impaired. If any such indication exists, the

carrying amount of such assets is assessed and

where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised

to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

Such impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Financial assets

2.12.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.12.1Classification (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period; otherwise, they are

classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. If collection
of the amounts is expected in one year
or less they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “pledged bank deposits”,
“short-term bank deposits” and “cash
and cash equivalents” in the consolidated
balance sheet (notes 2.16 and 2.17).
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2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.12.1Classification (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Investments are designated as available-
for-sale financial assets if they do
not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments, and management
intends to hold them for the medium to
long-term. Financial assets that are not
classified into any of the other categories
(at FVPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments) are also included

in the available-for-sale category.

The financial assets are presented as
non-current assets unless they mature,
or management intends to dispose of
them within 12 months of the end of the

reporting period.

2.12.2Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-
derivative trading financial asset out of the
held for trading category if the financial asset
is no longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Financial assets other
than loans and receivables are permitted to
be reclassified out of the held for trading
category only in rare circumstances arising
from a single event that is unusual and highly
unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans
and receivables out of the held for trading or
available-for-sale categories if the Group has
the intention and ability to hold these financial
assets for the foreseeable future or until

maturity at the date of reclassification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRFREBE®R)
policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.12.2Reclassification (Continued)

2,12 MBEEE(E)
2122 E#fRHE (&)

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of
the reclassification date. Fair value becomes
the new cost or amortised cost as applicable,
and no reversals of fair value gains or losses
recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date.
Further increases in estimates of cash flows

adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

2.12.3Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-
for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss as gains and losses from

investment securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.124Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value
are recognised as follows:

(i) for “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” — in profit or loss within

other income or other expenses

(i) for available-for-sale financial assets that
are monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency - translation differences
related to changes in the amortised
cost of the security are recognised in
profit or loss and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income

(iiiy for other monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale

— in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.12.4Measurement (Continued)

Dividends on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss as part of revenue from continuing
operations when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is included in the
net gains/(losses). Interest on available-for-
sale securities, held-to-maturity investments
and loans and receivables calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of

revenue from continuing operations.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as

bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered an

indicator that the assets are impaired.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment
for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments
that were recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss in a subsequent

period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of

three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in

current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the

reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises

current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in

the consolidated income statement,

except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entity operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.22 EXBEEFRISIR(E)

(b) Deferred income tax (b) EFEFFIFIR
Inside basis differences AIEFREZZ
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the BIEFBHEREBBEENRE
liability method, on temporary differences EHAEZHEEINALER

arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly
controlled entity, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered

by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension
schemes.

The Group companies in Hong Kong
participate in a mandatory provident fund
scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

2 BESHHREE®

2.22 EXMRBEFBR(E)

(c)

-7

fisd BB A E A 91T S 3R
ARREEHERAHERAR
Hin BREFSHEER
BEGSRE-HBEER
ERRFHREEGEREZ
SR BEEITERHEER
Wz FrEs - BEEFT S8
EEHESEREEKH -

2.23 ER=EF

(a)

(b)

EREERAY
BEZEFRz2ENERE
BEERER AEELE
EREHESERHZRE
FFEEFRzEFTEEED
B -

BEZRBRERBRTFE
# HERENRBEL S

N
7o ©

B BT
AEBETAREEZEAR
REstE -

AEBEETEEBAAZA
BEMLABEETERS —
REMRKEE - REHRFKE
R -—BAKERD —EB
BERXNBEERRZERARE
- HZESTTELEFR
HEEPMERENEEER
R AEREZRE SR
Ao AIARSKETEAE N E
EEEXNVE-SHK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.23 EEW&EF (&)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued) (b) BHELEE(E)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in

the future payments is available.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised
by relevant government authorities for its
employees in the PRC and contribute to these
plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis,
up to a maximum fixed monetary amount,
as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future
retired employees under these plans. The
contributions are recognised as employee

benefit expenses when they are due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments

(a

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options

granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share

price);

° excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified

time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or holding shares

for a specified period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (and share

premium).

Share-based payment transactions among
Group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to

equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition 2.26 W2

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net
of discounts and returns. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues, which are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract periods which generally coincide with

when the relevant channels are broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment

is established.

() Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised in accordance with

the terms of the underlying contracts.

(d) Revenues from theatre operations mainly
comprise income from box office takings,
which is recognised when the services are

rendered to the buyers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Revenues from concerts performance and
events organisation is recognised when the

performances are rendered.

Revenue from the provision of artiste
management services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Revenue from the sales and distribution of
films and programs in audio visual product
format is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title has

passed.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Management fee income is recognised when

the services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest

rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases

(a

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease term.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as the lessor
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor
conveys to the lessee in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an

asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the nature of the

asset.

Lease income on operating leases is
recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will

comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.

Government grants relating to non-current assets
are deducted from the carrying value of the related
asset. The grant is recognised in a profit or loss

over the life of a depreciable asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify and evaluate financial risks in close co-

operation with the operating units of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong, the PRC and the Republic of China
(“Taiwan”) and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB”) and New
Taiwan dollar (“NTD”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency of
the individual group companies and net

investments in foreign operations.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk arising primarily with respect to RMB
and NTD. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through
sourcing suppliers denominated in the
same foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of
the respective foreign operations are also
RMB and NTD respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31st March 2018, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$1,019,000 (2017:
HK$1,121,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of payables denominated
in either HK$ or RMB that is not the
functional currency of the individual

group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority
of its foreign currency transactions in
United States dollar (“USD”), which is
pegged with HK$ at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of

foreign currency rate is limited.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of the investments
held by the Group and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the investment portfolio
is continuously reviewed, carefully
monitored, and diversified in accordance
with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Price risk (Continued)

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. At 31st March
2018,
securities of the Group had increased/

if the share prices of the equity

decreased by 5%, the pre-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$2,096,000
(2017: HK$2,301,000) lower/higher and
the equity of the Group would have been
HK$2,271,000 (2017: HK$2,636,000)
higher/lower, respectively.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed
with reputable banks and financial
institutions and other receivables
advanced to third parties, which generate
interest income for the Group. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by placing
cash balances in these institutions and
advances to these third parties with
various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash and other
receivables held at variable rates. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and other
receivables have been disclosed in note
28(a) and note 22 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
At 31st March 2018, if the interest rate
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$177,000 (2017: HK$705,000) lower/
higher.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit

histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for
impairment of receivables will be made in light

of existing evidence of uncollectibility.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability
of funds to meet all contractual financial
commitments as they fall due. The Group’s
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against
risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity

requirement.

The Group meets its day to day working
capital requirements, capital expenditure and
financial obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and the facilities obtained
from banks. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, management maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability

under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group’s
liquidity position and financial performance
to ensure it has sufficient cash flow to
meet the operational need. These measures
include raising additional capital;
existing loan facilities; obtaining additional
financing from banks; and realising certain
financial assets held by the Group through
if considered necessary. At 31st
the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of HK$55,406,000 (2017:
HK$123,585,000), short-term bank deposits
of HK$1,856,000 (2017: HK$2,258,000),
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$41,922,000 (2017: HK$46,011,000)
and other current assets of HK$44,433,000
(2017: HK$48,474,000) that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk. The Group is expected to be
able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover
its operating costs and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
coming twelve months from the date of these

disposal,
March 2018,

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBERREEE®)
3.2 Capital management 32 BHFXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March

2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Bank loans (note 28(a)) RITEFK(HZE 28(a))
Obligations under finance leases rﬁﬂﬁ*ﬂ%’ﬂﬁﬁ(ﬂ/ﬁf&ﬂb})

(note 28(b))

Total borrowings BEBE
Shareholders’ funds RERES
Gearing ratio BEEELE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

FEEERERAZBEBERRELE
BiIEFEEE 2D UARRE
HEHR S DA SRR
& WRIFERZERRB LD

RRFRAREREE  AEBED
SREORFRKNTZREEEE [
RFREE - BITHROINTBRERE
BRUTEMBEIR  SHEEEMN
WA ER °

REHMEANRIT -2 AREN
BEEELRETER o IHEERL
BERERURRESHE

AEBECKBAEREBEEELR
ER20% - R=ZF—N\FER=

—tHF=A=+—HzABEEEL
ZEMT :

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
46,042 9,230
312 548
46,354 9,778
623,637 681,576
7.4% 1.4%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3

The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value at 31st March

2018 and 2017.

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Trading securities (note 20(b))
Available-for-sale financial assets

— Equity securities (note 20(a))

Total assets

RE
BARERABRBRER
ZMBERE
— X5 RBRES(HE200b))
AHHENBEE
— BAE S (et 20(a))

HRE

e R R MR

3 HMERRER®)

DRE R

THRUMGEL EZDTEARBETE
ZHMBEIR - FTRASHZEEN
T

s RFREEFREREEERTS
L2 HREORERR) (5 —
&) o

o  EEAMER)NEE(BER
PTE) RS — R P ME LS
ZUBEREEREEHE(F
=) -

s [FMFERTEETHHE
ZEESEEBE (R TE
ZHEE) (F=R) -

TREIR=-ZE-—N\ER=_ZT—+
F=A=1+T—HEAREFEZR
EEBBEE -

Level 1

F—#
2018 2017
—ZE-N\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
41,922 46,011
3,498 6,712
45,420 52,723
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group does not have any financial assets/
liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland (“UK”) classified as trading securities or

available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets that are not
quoted in an active market are measured at cost

less impairment.

The carrying values less provisions for impairment
of trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits, pledged
bank deposits, trade and other payables, amounts
due to associates, borrowings and obligations under
finance leases approximate their fair values due to

their short maturities.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 HMEREER®)

3.3

LRREMEGE)

FR o REE W EEASRIKH
ARREHTRFEEE 2R EM
R BEEBE -

EEEMELEECMBEIAZA
REDNEREER 2T S HRES
E-REIESZHRENERS
fi-R58 KL T%EE &
EREIEERBIG  MESFE
& R B2 JR RIS 2 i R 1T
ZHWERS  MIZmSHERE
B AREMBEUBEERAZ
mEREAERERE -ZEITA
STAE R - FTAE-—R2ITAEE
ZEEREBRATIERIEER
MBS EIR(ER]D EHAEDER
AREABRIFSHATRHEZRAE
RE -

I E B 5 W E 2z T B
BETDBREAARBERTE

HREZREMERHIE - RER
ZEREIEE BHRITER
SEMRITER - EZRHEMEN
FIE - BNBEQARNE  BER
MEENEENEHREE - MH
SREEHRRERFEERAEN ER

s

= o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits
As set out in note 2.10, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each reporting
period with reference to both internal and external
market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs budget and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets. As at 31st March
2018, the carrying value of film rights, films in
progress, and film royalty deposits amounted to
HK$176,176,000 (2017: HK$148,268,000). Changes
in assumptions used in this assessment, including
the forecasted revenue, may result in additional
provision being made in the consolidated financial

statements.

e R R MR

4 mEEH ST RAER

fEET RAHE DAL WEUBER
BRrAMEZ(BEERERRTHE
BEE 2 ARRBMHRY) REH -

REEMBRAREHMGEARMBR - FES
AHEFTEER ROSEEFEERLES
KRR - RAKEEHRN T BN RFE
HEEHEBELRASREHENRE
2t RBRRESMT ¢

(a) EENE BREPEXRELRE
HBeREE
HAKI 210 E 0 BEERAE
BRASEREYMERS IR
EMERRSERNBRIIRZT S
ERBINERERES F2EHZ
BUDRRE - TEHRME  SHERRIT
FATEE AR AR T 5 2 — RS
ARRAE 2 S5 E TR E AT RERT
e R=—_E—NF=A=+—8 >
EYRE BREPEFREY
HER$ ZREHEA 176,176,000 %
JT(= 2= — + £ : 148,268,000
7T) o WRHME TR AR (BETER
W)z S AEEHARGE Y
IR A HEEIMBE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of interests in a joint venture
and amounts due from a joint venture and an
associates

As set out in note 2.11, impairment of interests in
joint ventures and amounts due from joint ventures
and associates are performed at the end of each
reporting period with reference to the expected

performance of the joint ventures and associates.

According to the management’s assessment in
respect of the carrying value and amounts due
from joint ventures and associates, a provision for
impairment of interest in a joint venture amounted
to HK$282,000, provision for impairment of amount
due from a joint venture amounted to HK9,086,000
and provision for impairment of amount due from
an associate amounted to HK$9,415,000 were
recognised respectively in the consolidated financial

statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

4 MRBEAERAE=)

(b)

(c)

RRMRREBETMHE
AREZEEREREUEERH
ENNERD ISP 2RITER -
MR BHER - AAKEEKE
HEEESEZAABEMGTEHE
A e PMEHEETE - RNEEZE
BEEMGERMUARHER EET
ZREMEREBTHRERSER -
i AKEERTEGEEL A » BIR
ENERBFZAAREEERE
H i A RE S H AR S B IS R R AB AL
@,

R—RaEtRZEILIRER—
ReELER—BHEAFTZIRE
{8

HBUMMFE2AAE R—BEE
b3 fm U R B E & 13 K B
ERRZRERERERNKRIES
EZ2ERELENRBENTRZEAS
RIETLURE ©

RIEEEBHERSE DEREE
DA Z BREERARIEEST 2304
R—BegEbE R ZRERE
282,0008 7T ~ B —EEE L
Z I 2R E R 19,086,000 8 T
REW—EBE AT ZREZRE
#189,415,000/8 T2 BIRGE B
IR PR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information

e R R MR

5 H@RSBEH

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FExT
Revenue I} &=
Licensing income MRFEUR A 95,398 83,595
Sales of services $HE R 16,122 13,998
Sales of goods HE® R 2,980 2,498
114,500 100,091
Other income Halr A
Rental income from investment properties BREWERS WA
(note 14) (HiaE 14) 8,870 10,651
Management fee income EEEWRA 245 245
Dividend income BEWA 1,912 1,651
Others Hih 2,146 4,159
13,173 16,706
127,673 116,797

The chief operating decision maker has been identified
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.

AEBHUTESHRERIELERR
E-HTESERARE ZAMRE
AHERE - PEERRELHRBIRE
HITEFCERFEEZABREEE

REDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group operates
in eight business segments:

—  Television operations

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-

licensing
—  Theatre operations
—  Concert performance and events organisation
— Mobile games applications and video online
—  Artiste management

— Sales and distribution of films and programs in

audio visual product format

—  Property investment

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

2Rk 9EEE =)

REBE=ZZE-—-N\E=ZA=1+—HLHE

B

 AEEEE EEHK D

RS S

BY R R B IR RS

SRS S

EIEEREWED

FHEEERERRERTIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2018 by each principal activity is as follows:

Segment revenue

Reportable segment (loss)/profit

Reportable segment assefs

Reportable seqment liabilties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights

Fair valug gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Amortisation of film rights

Provision for impairment of film rights
and films in progress

Share of losses of
— An associate
- Ajoint venture

Provision for impairment of interest in a
joint venture

Provision for impairment of amount due
from an associate

Provision for impairment of amount due
from a joint venture

Provision for impairment of other
receivables

Addtions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

-.%’

&

A(ER)/HR

{3

PES viEi-

% BRRRELNE
HREELHRH
ERE a8

EftRENFZOAEN

&

FiERE
FRRNRRTRY

AERE

BETII%EER
- -ERELT
= __F A”‘ﬁ%

R-EaedEzRE,
AERE

Bh-BRELTMEL
HERE

BY-EogbRiEL
RERR

AERIEZAERS

14‘4

Lt
PES i
12H7%
|

1—J~=.*

=
BR
&
L)

RENX BERAE

RESTNE BRME
FREZhERS

Television
operations
LU 5
HK$000
FET

41,495
(10,6%0)
458
(29,495

(395)

(15,507

38

11,855

Film
exhibition
and film
rights
licensing and
sub-licensing
L0
REKNR
RHiRER
HKS'000
FET

30,743
(6,099)
197,089
(45,595)

(576)

(13,649

(17,475)

m

91,162

Theatre
operations
L1 3]
HKS'000
FET

U7
20m)
6,183

(18,137)

(949)

132

5 IWR9BEE =)

BEIRERES

Za:l:— =

A=+ -BLFEIHERMT :

Mobile

games

Concert ~ applications
performance  and video
and events online
organisation  FHEE
Hee  BRES
REWED REWAR
HKS'000  HKS'000
FET FET
15,191 931
(2,858) (32,190)
20,827 1,263
(13,388) (1,214)
(%9) (317)

- (3,353)

- (1,902)

- (262)

- (9,415)

- (9,086)

- (1,263)

k1) 11

Sales and
distribution
of films and
programs in
audio visual

product
format

WEEER

Aiste  FAHE
management  RR{TEH
E\BE REE
HKS'000  HK$'000
FET FET
860 933
(475) (159)
6,310 29,883
(221) (1,855)

- (379)

1 -

Property
investment
LE ST
HKS$000
FET
(note (b))
()

21,309
1,172
(@1517)

19,309

4,869

e R R MR

—N&F=

Group
550
HK$000
FET

114,500
(3,049
550,255
(197,422

(2,715)

19,309
(29,155)

(17,475)

(3,353)
(1,902

(282

(9,415)

19,086)

(1,289)

6,183

103,017
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Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

5 IWR9BEE =)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2017 by each principal activity is as follows:

Segment revenue

Reportable segment (loss)/profit

Reportable seqment assefs

Reportable seqment liabilties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Amortisation of film rights

Provision for impairment of film rights
and films in progress

Share of losses of
— An associate
— A joint venture

Addtions to property, plant and
equipment

Additions to film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Interest in and amount due from an
associate

Interest in and amount due from a joint
venture

-.;i’

&

AH(ER)/HR

L3

PES viki-

% BRRRELAE
HREETERH
ERE a8

% BRRREZAR

1—,F=.’

bt
PES i
12§73
|

1—J~=.*

EftRaNzL
Mgk
SR
SYMERRRTEY
RERE
BETHRERE

FEEINE BETE
YREZNERS
H-BRENTZRRR

Fgl& %W'\—]M

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 % £4

Television
operations
B
HK§ 000
&1

40301
(12,804
19781
(34,449

342

507

14,149

Film
exhibition
and film
rights
licensing and
sub-ficensing
ETH0
REZiE
RHRER
HKS 000
fér

nm
(640%9)
118,498
(60.646)

)

(16,093

(18,279

51,315

Concert

performance

and events

Theatre  organisation
operations BRE
PhEl  RERED
HK'000  HKS000
7 &1
23420 11,206
(20,828) 39
5,706 11,283
(14,181) (7,382)
(7,001) el
(14,058) -
825 -

BREFTEEFHED

Zﬁ:l:— =

B=T-BLFEIHERMT :

Mabile
games
applications
and video
onling

E2 i
EfEd
RESRH
HKS 000
&1

Artiste

management
B\ER

HK§ 000
TEx

2791 -
15.961) )
N 51%

319 -

1509 -

(6987) -
19 -

3 =

12,69 =

7,208 =

Sales and
distribution
of films and
programs in
audio visual
product
format
NEEER

FABE  Property

RETEY  investment

RER  9ERE

HK$'000  HK$000

22 &1

(note (b))

(Hit)

151 -

(1,843) 12,298

31,312 20,642

(3,126) (24972)

(265) -

= 8,130

3 202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

—tF=

Group
iy L]
HK§'000
fén

100,091
193519
165,305
(145,069

18608)

(14,058

8130
.17

(18,279

(6987)
19

2,306

65,464

12,69

7,208

LEMEBAERA

G



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(@)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment profit/(loss) is profit/(loss)
before income tax, excluding unallocated share
of profits of associates, other income, other
gains — net, finance costs — net, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, and amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights that are used
by all segments and other corporate expenses
(mainly including staff costs and other general

administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in and amounts due from associates and
joint ventures, available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
cash and cash equivalents and other corporate
assets (mainly including property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land and land use rights

that are used by all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings, amounts due to associates and
other corporate liabilities (mainly including accrued

charges of the head office).

e R R MR

5 IWR9BEE =)

()

AE2/RD ST HRERER 2
SERTBERAER - RBDERTERE
BRRERARD BEFRRFEDH
REZ2EFE (BE)TE - FF
BHAXTEIRET2®/OA
BAEEHTESRENERRA
HEaMBHRR—zh A& -

REEz Wz Bx >  EEREE
TDEREDE2EEDE ©

A2 WA (FR) BERATE

BATAE,(E8) » TEERDE
FE(LEEE N BRI - HAalkA ~ H
s — FEE - mERAK —

B FEDSERZMEE - HaE
REZINE *Hi%:tﬂﬁ&:tﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Bz#E  URERSE 2 Mt
XX (EEREEIRAREAt
—RITHFX) °

%@E&éﬁﬁ% @ﬁ&%w

PBEE Tz:’&ftfﬁﬁ)&isﬁﬁz
BREE BRERZERBEEE U
REMEXEE(ETRREMRED
BER M - HBERREUARME
Bt R i fERE) o

AE2HoMEENEERDERT
BE - BYBEQARRAREME
XA E(ZEREANSE ZERT
BH) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

5 IWR9BEE =)

(b)

()

The revenue of HK$9,115,000 (2017: (b)
HK$10,896,000) attributable to the segment
“property investment” has been included in other

income.

Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or (c)

loss, assets and liabilities.

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and
liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

(MERE |5 HBEMNL 2K Z
9,115,000/ T(= & — £ &
10,896,0007 jt ) B 5F A H i Uk
)\o

|

2RO MES - BERAEBEZY

sem
wm

AE2RA B EEREFER
SBERAEHAIERE  BEERE
BEHRMT :

follows:

Profit or loss

Reportable segment loss
Unallocated amounts:

Unallocated other income

Unallocated other (losses)/gains — net

Unallocated finance costs — net

Unallocated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights

Unallocated share of profit of an

associate

Unallocated corporate expenses

R EEABYA

AAOBEM(EE),
Wz — B

ADBRERAN — FH

ROEIR - HEBERRIE
ZITBEUAREE L K
b {E ARz 8

R B —EEE D F
A3

ROBEHRX

Loss before income tax per consolidated %R& W23 Fr 5l 2 KR Fr iS5

income statement

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

RIES 8

tENEBEERAE

2018 2017
ZEZE—\f —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(36,043) (93,513)
1,956 2,121
(4,065) 11,911
(286) (234)
(6,157) (6,026)
1,411 6,038
(6,597) (5,368)
(49,781) (85,071)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
(c) (Continued) (c)
Assets "E

Reportable segment assets A2|MAHEE
Unallocated assets: ROBEE :
Unallocated property, plant and ROBHE - HEEREE
equipment and leasehold land and DRFAE it K + it
land use rights fiE AR

AOEAHHENKEE

Unallocated available-for-sale financial
assets

Unallocated financial assets at fair ROEIRA REFTA

value through profit or loss BRkzUBKEE
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents ROBEER
LRREEH
Unallocated interests in and amounts ROBMABERTAREGE
due from associates and joint E R ER ‘3‘“*
ventures NEIREERER
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEESE

Total assets per consolidated balance #H#&EEEEBXRMIIZ
mEE

sheet

Liabilities afR

Reportable segment liabilities A2KHEEE

Unallocated liabilities: ROBELE :
Unallocated bank borrowings RAOERITEE
Unallocated amounts due to associates k2 FEfE{I Bk N TIF0IE
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ko EaRE

Total liabilities per consolidated balance #E&EEEEBERASIZ
sheet FEN=RE

5 IWR9BEE =)

(&)
2018 2017
—2-\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
550,255 465,325
203,645 198,019
3,498 6,712
41,922 46,011
112 108,774
11,125 14,009
5,296 4,139
815,853 842,989
2018 2017
—B-N\FE —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
137,422 145,069
46,042 9,230
1,834 -
2,227 1,068
187,525 155,367
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
(c) (Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The result of its revenue from
external customers and non-current assets other
than financial instruments located in Hong Kong

and other countries are summarised below:

Hong Kong B
PRC g
Taiwan =
Other countries HAbBEIXR

During the year ended 31st March 2018,
revenues of approximately HK$18,297,000 (2017:
HK$19,109,000) was derived from one single
external customer attributable to the television

operations.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

2Rk 9EEE =)

(c) (#&)
AEBEFEUEE PEIRAENR
Rt o AUREBREMER
ZHNEE PR E R IR B E E (B
BITARI) 2 EEBMNT -

Revenue from

external customers

SrERE R
2018 2017
—B—-\F —E—tHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
41,876 35,099
44,215 34,184
9,280 9,345
19,129 21,463
114,500 100,091

REBZ-_T—-/\F=A=+—HL
FE - % 18,297,00058 T (=
Z—+4 :19,109,00058 5T) J3 R
BERBRERER Iz —BE—
SNERE S o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

5 Revenue and segment information 5 SRS BEE®
(Continued)
(c) (Continued) (c) (#&)

Non-current assets

(other than financial assets)

EREBEE
(HBEERI)
2018 2017
—2—)\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Hong Kong &8 449,907 365,892
PRC P 141,235 170,437
Taiwan =3 27,244 25,274
Other countries HAuE =R 20,934 26,089
639,320 587,692
6 Other gains - net 6 Hfulkz — B8
2018 2017
ZB—)\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment EffIREVEZARE
properties (note 14) Wz (ffat 14) 19,309 8,130
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets E A RA{EFTABRKZ
at fair value through profit or loss HBEEZARE
(F518) bz (4,089) 4,140
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries — net HERB ARz
— BEE - 11,638
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BEE ARz Was - 7,771
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  HEREREZ
equipment — net W — FEE 74 =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A HEM K EEREEIE
financial assets (note 20(a)) (K&t 20(a) (50) —
15,244 31,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

7 Expenses by nature 7 BREHISZHAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution HAHERA - $HE s RITRTHEIERE
and marketing expenses, and administrative expenses X URITHES ZEZ MU :

are analysed as follows:

2018 2017
—2—-)\¥F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAET FET
Cost of inventories (note 21) BFERA(FaE21) 1,716 1,113
Reversal of obsolescence of inventories REFZE D
(note 21) (BtaE21) (933) (77)
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use A&+t +ib{FERAE>Z
rights (note 12) s (fat12) 788 788
Depreciation (note 13) WE(HaE13)
— Owned property, plant and equipment — BEWE  HBEREE 7,745 13,625
— Leased property, plant and equipment — HEY - HeEREE 339 221
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ - #28 K R RE
(note 13) (B3 13) - 14,058
Amortisation of film rights (note 15) ERERE (AF 15) 29,155 32,177
Provision for impairment of film rights EXRERERE
(note 15) (BtaE 15) 17,175 18,278
Provision for impairment of amount due from FEUX — BB 2 B 708 2 8
an associate (note 16) BRE K 16) 9,415 —
Provision for impairment of amount due from U — & & S FIE 2
a joint venture (note 17(a)) BB (B 17(a) 9,086 -
Provision for impairment of other receivables HEfthfE LR 1E 2B E B 1 1,283 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETE &
— Audit services — ZERE 1,660 1,600
— Non-audit services — FRERE 90 80
Direct operating expenses arising from EXHEsWAZERENEZ
investment properties that generate rental BELERZ (T 14)
income (note 14) 2,210 1,776
Employee benefit expenses (including EEEFEX
directors’ emoluments) (note 11) (BIEEEM=) (HaE11) 47,877 49,471
Exchange (gains)/losses ER (k) BiE (19,206) 9,336
Marketing and promotion expenses TmZEEREERS 9,507 19,544
Operating lease rental in respect of buildings 18F 2 &&HKNEE
(note 33(a)) (KtaE33(a) 7,424 7,387
Production, playout and origination costs SUE - BRI RIEERA 13,801 17,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

8 Finance income - net 8 HMBEWA - 2%
2018 2017
—E-)\FE —E—tHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&ET FET
Finance income BB A
— Interest income on short-term bank — BHRTERZ
deposits FEWA 208 759
— Interest income on loans to third parties — BE=ZFEFRZ
FE WA 523 555
821 1,314
Finance costs MERE
— Interest on loans — BERZHE (270) (225)
— Interest element of finance leases — MEBEY 2SI M5 (16) 9)
(286) (234)
Finance income — net HMBRA — 88 535 1,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

9 Income tax expense 9
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taiwan corporate income tax has
been provided at the rate of 17% (2017: 17%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
other countries’ profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.
Current income tax EHEH
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH
— Taiwan corporate income tax — BELERMER
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFEBERE
Total current tax ERRASEE
Deferred income tax (note 29) IEIEPTB L (AL 29)
Income tax expense FRi8#RBASL

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

FRiG B3

BB BEANMGE ERBAEN
BE16.5% (ZF—+F : 16.5%) 5=
BE -  AECEMESNRFERNMMER
BAEUAREAT% (ZE—EF 1 17%)
FHREE - HERA B2 B AIRBE
R ST FERR B FE AR SR B S & SRS
EERZBITHRENE

2018 2017
ZE—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
719 165

(20) =

699 165

743 231

1,442 396




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

A joint venture’s and associates’ results
reported net of tax

Over-provision in prior years

Tax charge

9 FrEMEAX =

REE 2 RAEHAEIE 2 BRRRE
RATEBREMAE 2 ERBBEZEH

N -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
SR T] o ] (49,781) (85,071)
EBHR16.5% (ZT—LF :
16.5%) st B 2 H 1B (8,214) (14,037)
HERTRRE2EE
(2,073) (5,187)
BAZRBUA (4,565) (6,889)
AR % 5,218 4,983
WERERELEMESHEREZ
BIEEE 12,441 21,748
BABIABERZHIBERSE
(1,979) (224)
FI2EReaELERBENTE
& (HBRELIE) 634 2
BIEFEBERE (20) —
RIEMAX 1,442 396
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERAR MY R

10 Loss per share 10 BEREGE
(a) Basic (a) E=X
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing BREARGERAQATANER A
the loss attributable to owners of the Company FE 16 E5 #8 49,159,000 t(= =
of HK$49,159,000 (2017: HK$82,259,000) by the — + & : 82,259,000 jt ) B B
weighted average number of ordinary shares of FACBTEBRMNEFLHE
5,923,739,000 (2017: 5,923,739,000) in issue during 5,923,739,000 )8 (= & — £ F :
the year. 5,923,739,000 f%) 5t & o
(b) Diluted (b) #H
Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31st HREBEMELEREREEN
March 2017 and 2018 are the same as the basic B #HBE=E-—tFR=Z-N\
loss per share as the potential additional ordinary F=A=T—HILFEEZERES
shares are anti-dilutive. EREGREREIEHEE o
11 Employee benefit expenses 11 EREFIFAX
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Wages and salaries TERFE 43,459 45,663
Pension costs — defined contribution plans EBAREHA — REMFRETE 4,418 3,808
47,877 49,471
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2017: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining
two (2017: two) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other

benefits in kind %
Pension costs — defined contribution ~ EREKA — 5
plans B

Both of the individuals’ emoluments fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000.

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2017: three) directors or the two (2017: two)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss

of office.

1 &

(a)

REMRK

e R R MR

RiEFIBAX &)
hsRSHFMAL
FR AEEBRVERSTHMAL
Fo=R(ZE—tF =R)AE
B HEZHMEEREXZEN 2D
MR - FREAHEN T HER
Z2(ZE2E—tF  WB)EaFHMA
+oBMEmT :

EX#HE  RURAMEY

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,768 3,055

18 18

2,786 3,073

ZE AL 2 E£EE % 1,000,001
37T Z 2,000,00058 7T ©

REBEEZE-E-N\ER-ZE—tF=
A=1T—HLEFE FAEELHED
ZH(ZE—LF  ZR)ESIW
B(CE—LF  WMB)RSHMA
TXAME - FRMATEERIR
MAREEE 2 RENAFEDBERE

&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(b)

(c)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong
Kong under the requirement of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF
scheme, the Group’s contributions are calculated at
5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
in the MPF Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until the
employee reaches the retirement age of 65 subject
to certain exceptions. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The total
contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$550,000 (2017:
HK$576,000).

tENEBEERAE

1 &
(b)

(c)

RigFIBAZ =)

B & I 36
REBCHE(BRESHME) D
HESELSEREMTH2EB

REH UREEz2EEABME
jﬁaiﬁﬁ‘f 2
B ctBIRE

FEBRBEEBEHMELABSTE
HREIMBESFTEGRA DT 2R
EAEEBETRHERFMEAES
E(EESE D - RiBwE
i 8 AEBzHERRBRESE
ERBIFTRAE 2 EREMEBEBRAS5%
HE ESRAEEESA1,5008
T MEEZHEBARARESA
7,100t BIEE R EORES
FTEMELBESEHR - BRET
BISMER IS - BEIEERTEEZ

2HBAHYERE EEEEF
JE6SERINFRR AL - BESET
B EERASECEEDH  H
SREUBECESEE - FR K
SEnRESEFEL 2 HRE
%6 /550,000 8 T(ZF— £ & :
576,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continueqd)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2018 amounted to HK$90,000 (2017:
HK$86,000).

At 31st March 2018, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme and
contributions totalling HK$40,000 (2017: HK$44,000)
and HK$12,000 (2017: HK$12,000) payable to
the MPF Scheme and the Retirement Scheme
respectively were included in the consolidated

balance sheet.

1 &

(c)

e R R MR

RigFIBAZ (&)

B rtBIREEE
REETERERTBARETE(R
REHEI D EHERR o BRIKSTEIAR
BmES T EIRMATMEAREE AR
WS ERMB L EBEMA R
Bert ez EERMHERKER - B
KB EERNBBUERAEE
ZAEB2(E2DEFEE - RER
it BEERESHESAEZE
EEARFE5%EEHER(ESH
BEE1,5008 ) - BERTK
10FREEERZEREMEL
Z100% % AR TEH2EIF
R#%%  RERLHZE20%ZE
WNEEMR - EHBERT > 2
R Bt A AR A EE 2K -
HESIRISEEHNEEXNHE
EERA  BIAREE T EEERE
EEEXTE-—SHER - EREBE
—E- \F=A=1+—HILEEZ
AW ENEE B MEEE
(H0BRE R WAt 5K ) % 90,0008 7T
(ZZ—+t % :86,000/87T) °

R-ZE—N\F=A=+—H 1\
A] AR A R 15 R IR 5T 8 2 R R A
M2 ERWER > T aaES s E
RENRFEELEZHRD RIS H
40,000 T (== —t 5 : 44,000
Bt ) k12,0008 T(=Z E —
F 1 12,0008 7T)ESD BT AGRE
Y- 3=NE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

12 Leasehold land and land use rights

13

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 % £4

At 1st April 2017 and 2016

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use

rights (note 7)

At 31st March 2018 and 2017

Property, plant and equipment

At 1st April 2016
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March
2017

Opening net book amount

Additions

Depreciation charge (note 7)

Revaluation surplus (note (a))

Disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment charge (note 7)

Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2017

Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book amount

12 HELIHME Th{ERE

2018 2017
—=—)\%F = - F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
RIE—LFR
—E-XRFWEA—H 26,508 27,296
FRE 4 i K2 1 i (5 PR 2 6
(HizE7) (788) (788)
RZZE-NER
—Z—tH=HA=+—H 25,720 26,508
13 Y% - BBRRIR
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements R RE vehicles Total
KARHELH BF  HERMEEE R RE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
FET &1 FET FET &1 AT
RZE-REMB-H
e - 154,524 - - = 154,524
R 15,583 - 55,613 57,143 5,675 134,014
ZitiE - - (31,227) (49,047) (5,258) (85,532)
BEsH 15,583 154,504 24,386 8,096 47 203,006
HE-S-tF
ZR=t-ALEE
ENREFE 15,583 154,524 24,386 8,096 47 203,006
hE - - 514 688 1,104 2,306
mEER L) - (4,818) (5,139) (3,612) (283) (13,846)
B BB WH ) - 1,964 - = = 1,964
HENBAR - - (87) (226) = (313)
HEERB7) - - (11,651) (2,407) - (14,08)
ERZE 1,010 336 818) (329) 15 221
FRBERE 6,593 152,006 7,211 2,217 1,253 179,280
RZE-tE=B=1-A
e - 152,008 - = = 152,006
FiA 16,593 - 53,984 55,912 6,758 133,247
ZHRERAE
- - (46,773) (53,695) (5,505) (105,973)
BE3H 16,593 152,006 7.211 2,217 1,253 179,280
L EREBERAD A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13 1% - BREREB @)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements &R RE vehicles Total
KARHLH BF  HENERE R AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAn FEn FAn FEn FEn FAn
Year ended 31st March BEZZ-)\§
2018 ZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 16,593 152,006 7211 2,217 1,253 179,280
Additions WE = - 4974 448 761 6,183
Depreciation charge (note 7) ~ FEER(#i7) - (4,902) (1,928) (691) (563) (8,084)
Revaluation surplus (note (2) ~ EftES(Hi# () - 5,906 - - - 5,906
Disposals HE - - - (56) (28) (84)
Exchange differences Bzl 835 264 339 130 44 1,612
Closing net book amount FRBERE 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1,467 184,813
At 31st March 2018 R=Z-\F=R=1-A
Valuation fh - 153,274 - - = 153,274
Cost A 17,428 - 60,175 56,917 7,054 141,574
Accumulated depreciation  Z3tHiE
and impairment RAE - - (49,579) (54,869) (5,587) (110,035)
Net book amount BE3H 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1,467 184,813
(@) The buildings were last revaluated on 31st March () BYEESERGEMM=ZER

2018 by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, on a
depreciated replacement cost basis, which is the
aggregate of the land value in its existing use
and the estimated current replacement costs
of the buildings less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve through other

comprehensive income.

MTERARIRITEEEMAEE
BN —ZE-—NF=A=+—H
EMZESEFZEE IREBERE
Rz T EBEEGTREETE
BERACABERERERERMEME
B ZREREBIILETE - MR
BRIBLFRBHZEMRMRTIER
Htt 2 AR AT EGRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2018, revaluation
surplus of HK$5,906,000 (2017: HK$1,964,000) has

been credited to the other comprehensive income.

Fair value hierarchy:

At 31st March 2018
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in the PRC

— Located in Taiwan

At 31st March 2017
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in the PRC

— Located in Taiwan

A Z8-\F=A=+-H
BEHDAEE
BERANE

- URE#
— frAHE
- U aE

RZ2—-tF£=A=1+-H
BEHDAEE
BERRAME

- URE#

— U E

- U gE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

13 % - BRREB @)

(@ (&
REBZ=

E-NE=ZA=+—H

I E - Ef4A845,906,00078 7T
(ZE—+%F :1,964,0008 )2

FTAHfL 2 E K o

DNAERE

Fair value measurements using

DREGE HER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HEXTHRENE  EXTURRHE

(E5=8) (B=#) it

HK$000 HK$’000 HK$:000

TEr TEr T#r

- 135,174 135,174

12,700 - 12,700

5,400 - 5,400

18,100 135,174 153,274

- 134,956 134,956

11,600 - 11,600

5,450 - 5,450

17,050 134,956 152,006




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

e R R MR

13 1% - BREREB @)

(Continued) (@ (%)

Fair value measurements using EREXFTIRREE 2018 2017
significant unobservable inputs ZAoRERE —E—\E —E— 4t
(Level 3) (B=%®) HK$°000 HK$°000

FAEIT FAET

Properties held for own use: HIEBRAWE

At 1st April 2017 and 2016 RZE—tHER

—E-RFNA—H 134,956 136,371

Depreciation charge mEEHA (4,467) (4,364)

Revaluation surplus BEh B 4,685 2,949

At 31st March 2018 and 2017 R-ZE—N\FER

—E—tE=H=+-0g 135,174 134,956

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For the properties held for own use located in the
PRC and Taiwan, the valuation was determined
using the basis of open market value. For
properties held for own use located in Hong Kong,
the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis due to the lack

of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sg. m (2017: HK$11,000/sq. m) and depreciation
rate of 2.20% (2017: 2.25%). These assumptions
are estimated by the valuer based on the risk
profile of the property being valued. The higher the
construction unit cost, the higher the fair value. The

higher the depreciation rate, the lower the fair value.

MM ENERERNTMITERIARM
BMBHRERBMET 2MEE - ZEMEHE
FRAGBONBERRSEEEASR
2R UBGEBERMGEERZAHE
METR M e

BRAURPERGEZFFEBERYER
5 EEDERARTEEEEE - B
REBZFEBRYEMNS  BRZT
SehBEN  BEEDRITEEER
AEERE °

FEEBNREEELIZERTABREY
BARARBEBEMNRALNS T HK11,000
BL(ZZFE—tF: 8F % K11,000
BLT)RITER220% (ZF— 1 F:
2.25%) o M BRER B 14 E AP R W A E
Yz BBEARRAE H 5t o BB
rHE AREES  TEXHE A
REMIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b)

(d)

()

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$82,755,000 (2017:
HK$85,505,000) had they been stated at historical
cost basis.

At 31st March 2018, the freehold land and
certain buildings with aggregate carrying value
of HK$23,152,000 (2017: HK$22,043,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 28(a)(i)).

The Group leases motor vehicles under non-
cancellable finance lease arrangement. The lease
term is 3 years, ownership of the asset lies within
the Group. At 31st March 2018, the carrying amount
of the motor vehicles held under finance leases was
HK$529,000 (2017: HK$868,000).

Depreciation expense of HK$8,084,000
(2017: HK$13,846,000) has been included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated

income statement (note 7).

tENEBEERAE

13 % - BRREB @)

(b)

FEBZBFRGEEIER MY
¥ -HMBERZHEHMIMAIR
B 7R B BR o il 1 F 1R B £ R AR
BEEER AIEEESERS
82,755,00058 T(= & — t & :
85,505,000 & 7T) ©

R=ZE—N\FE=A=+—H £k
H{E 423,152,000 8T (=& —+t
F 122,043,000 T ) Z KA F#HE
THRETEFEEIFERALER
P2 SR 1T mbIB Z B 1R (Ffi5E 28(a)
@i)) °

FEERBEFTHEREEOZH
HESE - AHR=F EEZM
EREBAEE -R=-Z—N\F=A
=+—B8 RERMEEIFEZA
BH 2 BRME £ %A 529,000% T (=
Z— 4 :868,000/87T) °

T E B %8,084,0008 (= =
—+ 4 : 13,846,000 T) B 5T A
mEWZRA 2 1TBEI X (i sE
7)°



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

14 Investment properties 14 BEYME
2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
At fair value BMARE

At 1st April 2017 and 2016 R-BE—tER-ZE—REF
MA—H 218,504 211,449
Fair value gains on revaluation (note 6) Btz ARBERE(HE6) 19,309 8,130
Exchange differences & HEXE 3,673 (1,075)

At 31st March 2018 and 2017 REE-—NFR=ZZE—tF
=A=+-—H 241,486 218,504

AT EHERREMEMNZ SRS

consolidated income statement for investment properties: A

The following amounts have been recognised in the

2018 2017

—B—-\F —E-+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET FET

Rental income (note 5) HEWA (KaE5) 8,870 10,651
Direct operating expenses arising from EXHSWAZBENEZ

investment properties that generate rental BEKERX (A7)
income (note 7) 2,210 1,776

AEEZRENERFEER Y 2
EEERCBYEXSERMLEMER
BRI TERARETELME N
BEREVER-ZF-N\ER-ZT—+
FZA=T-HZAAREBE - -BABRE
MEMS  HRTABREREESKE
ERE - TREGREZIHUQAETR
ZIREMRETOM -

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer
who held a recognised relevant professional qualification
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31st March 2018 and 2017. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest and
best use. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

14 Investment properties (Continued)

The valuation gains or losses is included in

“other

gains — net” in consolidated income statement (note 6).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date

of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and

3 during the year.

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 % £4

Fair value hierarchy

FEHNAETE
REME
- BXE - LRER

Recurring fair value measurements
Investment properties:
— Commercial units - located in Hong
Kong
- BEEN - UiPE
- TXEf - UhEA
- EEEf - LREE

— Commercial units - located in the PRC

— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong

— Residential units - located in Hong
Kong

— Residential units - located in the PRC - FEEN - RPE

LENEBBRAA

Significant other

observable inputs

14 BREYX @)
HEREREBEAGARERAZ
Hibliz — FHE(MEe) - AEBZHK
FANEREB S EHRBERELER
BRAAEEBERBAREY - X
FERNTES R F-RRE-KH
2 @B o

(a) Z2DRERE
Fair value measured at 31st March 2018 using
RZB-N\EZR=+-BZLREHE  HER
Significant

unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

R EXTRRNE EXTURESR Total
(B=8) (B=8]) A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET
14,700 - 14,700
70,100 - 70,100
87,150 13,926 101,076
51,100 - 51,100
4,510 - 4,510
227,560 13,926 241,486




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

14 Investment properties (Continueq) 14 BREVEX 7
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) LDRERWE)
Fair value measured at 31st March 2017 using
R-E-tE=R=1+-H2ONEHE  NHER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable
(Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
HtEATEREE ~ EATUEREE Total
(E=8) (E=8) act
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx FEn
Recurring fair value measurements EEMARETE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in Hong - WEBN - UREB
Kong 12,700 - 12,700
— Commercial units - located in the PRC ~ — BXE( - UiPE 62,100 - 62,100
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — T£Bf - uREE 78,700 13,904 92,604
— Residential units - located in Hong - FZE{ - ARNEE
Kong 47,500 - 47,500
— Residential units - located in the PRC - FEEN - URAHE 3,600 — 3,600
204,600 13,904 218,504
Fair value measurements using HFREXATHENEZ 2018 2017
significant unobservable inputs NREEE —E—N\F —E—+tF
(Level 3) (B=#) HK$°000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FET
At 1st April 2017 and 2016 R-ZE—tFR-ZE—RF
mA—H 13,904 14,049
Revaluation gains/(losses) BhEkE(BE) 22 (145)
At 31st March 2018 and 2017 REZBE-NER=Z—tF
=Z=A=+-—H 13,926 13,904
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

14 Investment properties (Continued)

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For commercial units located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, the valuation was determined using the basis
of open market value. For industrial units located
in Hong Kong, the valuation was determined by
adoption of depreciated replacement cost basis due

to the lack of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sg. m (2017: HK$11,000/sq. m) and depreciation
rate of 2.20% (2017: 2.25%). These assumptions
are estimated by the valuer based on the risk
profile of the property being valued. The higher the
construction unit cost, the higher the fair value. The

higher the depreciation rate, the lower the fair value.

tENEBEERAE

14 BEME#)

(a)

LREREGE)
MR ENERERTHTERA
BRI E AEmET 2 EE -

ZEMEARARBOMBEARR
SEEEABZ®  URGEBRRE

REEER2SEMETW

BRURBEBRTBZEEEMM
5 HENRARTEEEEE
RUNEBZIREMMS - HiR
ZARZTHEN  MEEIIRT
EEERNEEE -

WEEBEMAGEEZERTAE
REBREEENREANETA
K11,0008B T(=ZF—tF : §F
72K 11,0008 7T) RITEE2.20%
(ZZE—1F :12.25%) o WERHR
4 (B AR IR W R B ) 3 2 BB AR R
fEH st - BEBUHAAMS A
REMS - ITERHS > AREY
K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Investment properties (Continued)

(b) At 31st March 2018, certain investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$51,100,000 (2017: HK$47,500,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 28(a)(i))-

Film rights, films in progress and film

14 BEME#)

(b) R=ZFT—NE=A=+-—0 ' KHE
551,100,000 T (=8 —t
% 47,500,0008 ) 2% TRE
YECEBIERREBFTERRT
RiE 2 IER (MIEE 28(a)() °

15 BRME  BEHPAERCRER

royalty deposits g &
Film
Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
EXNE BEMER EXMEReE #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2016 R-E—X"EMA—AH
Cost B 943,247 58,816 31,219 1,033,282
Accumulated amortisation and &t R H{E
impairment (893,864) (2,771) — (896,635)
Net book amount HREF A 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647
Year ended 31st March 2017 HE-Z—+t&F
ZRA=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount EXREFEE 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647
Additions NE 10,500 32,718 22,246 65,464
Transfers =R 37,065 (27,824) (9,241) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) BEER (E7) (32,177) - - (32,177)
Impairment charge (note 7) HEBRMEZ7) (18,192 - (86) (18,278)
Exchange differences fE =58 (1,346) (2,042) - (3,388)
Closing net book amount FRIEESSE 45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
At 31st March 2017 R-Z—t&=A=+—H
Cost B 988,457 60,175 44,224 1,092,856
Accumulated amortisation and ~ Z&H##E R &
impairment (943,224) (1,278) (86) (944,588)
Net book amount RSB 45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
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15 Film rights, films in progress and film

15 BREME BEPAERCRER

royalty deposits (Continued) igERe =)
Film
Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
BEXMRE BRPER BEREERS #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31st March 2018 #E_Z—/\F
ZA=t+—HIL%EE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
Additions wE 10,400 82,067 10,550 103,017
Transfers = 55,617 (38,716) (16,901) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) #$5E M (#fZ7) (29,155) - - (29,155)
Disposal HE (33,411) - — (33,411)
Impairment charge (note 7) EEE M (#:Z7) (17,175) — — (17,175)
Exchange differences BN ES 2,610 2,022 = 4,632
Closing net book amount  F#IEE R 34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176
At 31st March 2018 R-F-N\F=ZA=+—H
Cost B 1,030,609 105,546 37,881 1,174,036
Accumulated amortisation 2t KRRE
and impairment (996,490) (1,276) (94)  (997,860)
Net book amount 28 34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176

(@)

Amortisation charge of HK$29,155,000 (2017:
HK$32,177,000) with respect to film rights has
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

income statement (note 7).

The carrying amounts of film rights and film royalty
deposits have been reduced to their recoverable
amounts through recognition of provision for
impairment losses of HK$17,175,000 (2017:
HK$18,278,000) which has been included in “cost
of sales” in the consolidated income statement (note
7).

B RS ¥ R 229,155,000 T
(ZZF—t % :82,177,0005& 7t )
BHEBACTAGRERERRAZ
[EHERA J(FIEET)

EYMEREEMERESZERE
CHOCEBRIABREFBERE
17,175,000 T(= & — £ F:
18,278,000 7T) B ZEH AT B &
o OREEBREE T ARENRE
RARZ[HEREI(MIFET) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Interests in associates

At 1st April 2017 and 2016

Incorporation of an associate
Addition

Disposal

Share of losses — net

Exchange differences

Amounts due from associates
Less: Provision for impairment of amounts
due from associates

Amounts due to associates

e R R MR

16 RBELQFIZHES

REZZB—tHR
—ZE—REMA—H

— R E N ML

wE

HeE

FE(LEIE — B8

fEH =%

FE W Bt & A R FRIE

-
B WS A R RIRRE

BE

FESBE A RIFRTE

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of

amounts due from associates are as follows:

At 1st April 2017 and 2016

Provision for impairment of amount due from

an associate (note 7)

At 31st March 2018 and 2017

REB—tFRZZ-RF

MA—H

P — Bt 1 B FRIE 2R

BB E (a2 7)

REB-NFRZF—+tF

=RA=+—H

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FiET
12,944 4,663

— 5

- 10,340

— (1,114)
(1,942) (949)
119 (1)
11,121 12,944
33,603 37,945
(33,603) (24,188
(1,834) —
(1,834) 13,757

7 2 B W 2 ) RO 2 L R
SBHMT :

2018 2017
—=—)\%F —E—+tHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
24,188 24,188
9,415 =
33,603 24,188
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

16 Interests in associates (Continued)
(@) Nature of interests in material associates as at
31st March 2018 and 2017

Name of entity

EReR

MAMO Games Limited
(“MAMO?)

ZLRMERERLT
(ME=RMEE )

IST Company Limited (formerly
known as Hongkongmovie.

com Company Limited)

(“18T7)
ERBARAR (REHES

ﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬁ)@&ﬁLD

Place of business/  Percentage

country of of ownership

incorporation interest

Exuk/ ERAEEER

HEREIER Ak

2018

~B-0\F

Hong Kong 49.5%
&8

Hong Kong 28.33%
&h

16 HBE

Percentage
of ownership
interest
EmAEER
aak

2017
E-t%

49.5%

28.33%

IST and MAMO are unlisted limited liability

companies in Hong Kong and there is no quoted

market price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group’s interests in associates.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

tENEBEERAE

DNEIZHR @)

(@ R-TB—N\FR-Z—tF=A
=+—H REXBEATNZRE

HH

Measurement

Nature of the relationship method
WENE HERE
The associate develops or licenses the Equity
mobile games application. B

ZHENTRRANFFRBREARL -

The associate provides playout, post
production, HD-film restoration,
channel management and mobile
application development services to
the Group and outsiders.

ZHENAMARERMIALREE
B #5584 BEEVEE  BE
EERFHEREARRRY -

ERBEREXGREMEBABBHLDE
ROF - HROEETSHRE -

BMEFMAREAEBRNEE D
HAREE °

AERZ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

16 Interests in associates (Continued) 16 WERELTFIZRE#)
(a) Nature of interests in material associates as at (@ B-ZE—N\ER_Z—tF=A
31st March 2018 and 2017 (Continued) =+—H8 '  REXBEAFZRE
HE(E)
The Group’s associates have the following REEZEE AR EG U T AEN
commitments: T
(i) Capital commitments (i) BEEXHRIE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FAET
Licenses h 5,792 5,820
(i) Operating lease commitments — as lessee (i) EEHHRIE—(EFEBARBEA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments RIE A A R E RO AT
under non-cancellable operating leases are as ZARRBREESLEENT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TF#ET FET
Within 1 year —FR 727 834
Later than 1 year and no later —FUERAFR
than 5 years 424 1,151
1,151 1,985
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e RS ERAR MY R

16 Interests in associates (Continued)
(@) Nature of interests in material associates as at
31st March 2018 and 2017 (Continued)

Summarised financial information for material
associates

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for IST and MAMO which is accounted
for using the equity method. The information below
reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associates — no difference in

accounting policies between the Group and the

16 RBIEXTIZHES =

(a)

R-B—N\ER_Z—tF=A
=+—H REXBEATNZRE

1:3 167

BEXWELFIZHMERHEE

LT HIIERERBR XD XY
BBk AR R A BR 2 B 35 B R AR
o LTERRRNEE DT/
BERMEF 2 2B - A EEEZS
&N B 2 BT ERRLERE -

associates.
IST MAMO
ZRiE ETEMES

2018 2017 2018 2017
—Z-N\F “E-iE —E-0\F “E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FBT
Non-current assets FRBEE 5,629 7,490 2,136 2,161
Current assets RBEE 41,720 39,318 6,544 16,743
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (509) (805) - -
Current liabilities mEaE (9,365) (13,772) (10,710) (12,131)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(BF)3E 37,475 32,231 (2,030) 6,773
Revenue 1§ 22,719 40,022 4,367 7,939
Profit/(loss) for the year ERFE/(BR) 4,981 15,179 (10,875) (14,116)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2@ /(18 )45 5,244 15,179 (10,875) (14,116)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Interests in associates (Continued)

(a)

Nature of interests in material associates as at
31st March 2018 and 2017 (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial

information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial

information of the material associate presented

to the carrying value of the Group’s interests in

associates.

Opening net assets at 1st
April 2017 and 2016

Capital injection

Net assets at the date of
reclassification

Non-controlling interest

Exchanges differences

Profit/(loss) for the year

Closing net assets/
(liabilities) at 31st
March 2018 and 2017

Interests in associates

Interests in other
associates

Carrying value as at 31st
March 2018 and 2017

R-E-t£R=%
-~EMA-RZ
FEERE

i

REFIEASZ
BEFE

FERER

EAEH

ERRE/ (B8

RZZ-NFR-Z
—t#=A=1-H
ZEREE/(Bf)
#E

REELA 2 BR

REMBEAT 2 R

R=E-NER=%

—t#=A=1-H
R

e R R MR

16 RBIEXFIZHES =

(@ R-B-—N\FER_F—tF=A
=t+—H ' REXBHELFZRE
1:3 1€
HEBHBEZ SR
Fr 25 E RBtE N 2 B ERE
FRAKERBEE D REE 2 RE
B2 ¥k
IST MAMO Total
2@ REEMER #it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“3-\E ZE-tF 0 Z®3-N\E ZE-tF ZE-NE CE-tF
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$000 HK§ 000
FEx FET FET TER FE7 FEr
32,231 5,352 6,773 - 39,004 5,352
- 11,700 - - - 11,700
- - - 20,889 - 20,889
- - 2,072 - 2,072 -
263 - - - 263 -
4,981 15,179 (10,875) (14,116) (5,894) 1,063
37,475 32,231 (2,030) 6,773 35,445 39,004
10,617 9,131 - 3,353 10,617 12,484
504 460
11,121 12,944
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e RS ERAR MY R

16 Interests in associates (Continued) 16 RBEBELARIZCHEE &

(@) Nature of interests in material associates as at (a)
31st March 2018 and 2017 (Continueqd)

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information (Continued)

As at 31st March 2018, the Group has cumulative
unrecognised share of losses of associates as

below:
At 1st April 2017 RZZE—tFEWMA—H
Unrecognised share of loss incurred RAFEEE ZARERE
during the year fhE5HE
At 31st March 2018 RZZE-—NF=A
=+—H
(b) Individually immaterial associates (b)

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in a number
of individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

Aggregate carrying amount of BRI~ E A AR 2 REZAE

individually immaterial associates

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s  ANEEFE(L T 5E 18 2 4848 :
share of:
Loss from continuing operations  HELL EK TS 2EE
Other comprehensive income/ Hip2mEE (BE)

(loss)

Total comprehensive income/ 2HEKE(FE) B8
(loss)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

R-EBE—N\ER-Z—tF=AR
=+—H REXBELARAZRE
1:3 4C-7

MBEEHBEZ 8K (&)

RZEBE—NF=A=+—H ' &&
BHEE R AR 2B E QT
EEmT

IST MAMO

BRA ZTROES

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHT FHT

- 2,030

- 2,030
LEES o8 T Iy

B XA 2 R A R 2
5h + RSB R BRIERITE AR
EARPEEME  REDADE
RSN -

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET

504 460

44 (1)

44 (1)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

16 RBELTZHEZ @)

16 Interests in associates (Continued)

() The amounts due to associates as at 31st March (c) R=ZE2—NE=A=+—8 EfR
2018 are denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest- B N BRIBIBTYE 0 BEIK

o RERNEREGEE -

free and repayable on demand.

17 REELERSERKZHR

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint

operations
(a) Interests in joint ventures (a) REBELEZHS
2018 2017
—B-N\EF —ZE—+tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
At 1st April 2017 and 2016 RZE—tFERZZE—RF
MMA—H 2,188 -
Incorporation of a joint venture —BeE hEFMRZ - 4
Addition nE - 2,981
Share of amortisation of intangible — FE{GE & E#EH
asset (85) —
Share of losses L &R (1,817) (797)
Impairment of interest in a joint R—EeEbEZERRE
venture (282) —
4 2,188
Amounts due from joint ventures W& & CERIE 31,419 27,348
Less: Provision for impairment of  J&f . FEURE & DEF AR ERE
amounts due from joint
ventures (31,419) (22,333)
- 5,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)

(a) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment

of amounts due from joint ventures are as follows:

At 1st April 2017 and 2016 Rn=

Provision for impairment of amount

due from a joint venture (note 7)

At 31st March 2018 and 2017

(i) Nature of investment in a material joint

41)&31 u)f]{

B (AaE7)

=t+—8

venture as at 31st March 2018

Name of entity

REgR

THEM Co. Limited
(“THEM”)

THEM is an unlisted limited liability company

in Hong Kong and there is no quoted market

Place of business/ Percentage

country of of ownership

incorporation interest

ExE/ ERAEER

EfAIER Al

2018

“B-\E

Hong Kong 55%
&h

price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities and material
commitment relating to the Group’s interests

in joint ventures.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

tENEBEERAE

tFR
~NEDNA
R —BEEhERIAZ

REZB-NFR=Z-

17 REELRREEREZER

(&)

(a) REELRZED(E)
AEEHRERSERETRZRE
BREEEBUT :

2018 2017
—F-)\F —EB—tHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
—H 22,333 22,333

B2 R AE
9,086 =

tF=A
31,419 22,333
i) R=-FT—NFZA=1—
A REXGERRZRR

HE
Percentage

of ownership
interest
ERARER
Bal

2017
“EtE

55%

Measurement

Nature of the relationship method

REEE HERE

The joint venture operates an Equity

online advertising platform ER%
DRELELEALRETA

THEMAEBF LHERD

A HEROALEHISHRE -

BMEAAEEAERNSE
TEERCIAREBREKR
T o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)

(@) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

Nature of investment in a material joint
venture as at 31st March 2018 (Continueqd)

Summarised financial information for material
joint ventures

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for THEM which is accounted
for using the equity method. The information
below reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture — no
difference in accounting policies between the

Group and the joint venture.

Non-current assets FEMBEE
Current assets MENE B
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Current liabilities X IN=Ri=

Net liabilities BEFHE
Revenue Wz

Loss for the year FREE
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEBEBAE

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information of the material joint ventures
presented to the carrying value of the Group’s

interest in joint ventures.

17

e R R MR

REELRRSERBCHD

(4&)

(a) REEBELRZHEI(E)

(i)

R-FE—NE=ZF=+—
A REXSELEZRE
ME(E)
BEAGEL
HE

UT &% EBETHEMER A #&
BEANRZHBEERBRE -
UTENRBASEDEN
BBERA2ZSN Z2EE—A&E
BEHZEELEZETHER
WA o

HKZHBEEHN

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
605 480
2,189 1,315
(13,282) (8,980)
(10,488) (7,185)
7,346 1,418
(3,303) (1,450)
(3,303) (1,450)
BBERIEZ# R
FENEREECE K
ERBEZEAEERGE R
¥R IREEZHER
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17 Interests in joint ventures and joint 17

operations (Continued)
(@) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Nature of investment in a material joint

(4&)

REELRRSERBCHG

(a) REELRZHER(E)

venture as at 31st March 2018 (Continueqd)
Reconciliation of summarised financial

information (Continued)

Opening net liabilities at 1st April
2017 and 30th December 2016
(acquisition date)

Loss for the year

Closing net liabilities at 31st March
2018 and 2017

Investment in THEM

Goodwill from acquisition (note ii)

Intangible asset from acquisition

Amortisation of intangible asset
from acquisition

Provision for impairment of interest
in THEM

Carrying value of THEM
Interests in other joint ventures
(note iii)

Carrying value as at 31st March
2018 and 2017

Amount due from THEM
Provision for impairment of amount
due from THEM

Amounts due from other joint
ventures

Provision for impairment of
amounts due from joint ventures

Carrying value as at 31st March
2018 and 2017

RE-Z—tFMNA-AR=
E-AFE+ZA=1THK
BRY 2FNEEFHE

FREE

RIE-—NERZZE—+F
:ﬁ—+ HZEK
1E /?

R THEM 212 &
WHBEE 2B (faEii)
WBEECETEE
WEEE 2B EEHS

RTHEM Z SR ERE

THEM Z BREIE
REMEELE 2 EDR
(BaE iii)
RZBE-—NER=ZF—+F
B=+—HZzKRHEE

FEUWR THEM 2 F318
FEUR THEM 2 Z 8RB B

FEWE & & DR

FEuk & & R
&

B2 RE R

RIZE-—NERF—LF
=A=t+—HZKREE

tENEBEERAE

(i)

R-E—NEFZ/F=1+—

B REXSELRZRE
1:3 X6V

HBEERE LR (1)
2018 2017
— I\ —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(7,185) (5,735)
(3,303) (1,450)
(10,488) (7,185)
(5,769) (3,952)
5,713 5,713

423 423
(85) =
(282) —
- 2,184

4 4

4 2,188
9,086 5,015
(9,086) —
- 5,015
22,333 22,333
(22,333) (22,333
- 5,015
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17 REELRRSEREZHR

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)
(@) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

In December 2016, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement to acquire 55% of
the equity interest in THEM from an external
party at a consideration of HK$5,500,000.
The directors of the Company has completed
fair value assessment of identifiable assets of
the investment. Goodwill and intangible asset
totalling HK$5,713,000 and HK$423,000 was
recognised in the interests in joint ventures
respectively.

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the
Group performed an impairment test on
interest in THEM and recognised a full
impairment provision of HK$282,000 on the
carrying value of THEM since the recoverable
amount was less than their carrying amounts.

Individually immaterial joint ventures

In addition to the interests in joint ventures
disclosed above, the Group also has interest
in an individually immaterial joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method.

(&)

(a) REEBELRZHEI(E)

(i)

(iii)

Aggregate carrying amount of BRI FREREEREZER
the individually immaterial joint HEE
venture

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ZNEBEML THIFE 2
share of: FEECR

Profit from continuing operations
Total comprehensive income

The amounts due from joint ventures are
denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

FECEXRBRE2ZAE
EHNREAE

RZEBE—XRE+=ZH K&
BT WEHE O— A%
B A+ U BTHEM 2 55%
B # > 1K {8 & 5,500,000 %
Lo RATEEEREAZEZR
BEooRBEERAAREFT
o 2 Bl & ££5,713,00058
7t} 423,00058 T 2 & K
EREECREEbE R
=ARER o

REBEZEZE=-Z—-—N\NE=H
=+—HILEFE FEEYH
A THEM 2 & 75 ¥ 17 5 (B Rl
= WHLTHEM 2 B & 1
7B B B 3 18 282,000 78
7T RE AT U E S FE KR
HIREE

B FTEXEELHE
BREXFIRBE2REERE
ZRERI  ARETR—F
BRI FERGELETHESR
i AR ERERE
ABR e

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET

4 4

(iv)

e & & EEFIRUB TS
B REER RERRE
RIFEE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint 17 REELXREEXBCHE
operations (Continued) (45
(b) Interests in joint operations (b) REABEBZHER

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements with certain independent third
parties to produce several films for exhibition
and distribution in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group has participating interests ranging from
20% to 90% in these joint operations. As at 31st
March 2018, the aggregate amounts of assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements relating to the Group’s interests in these

joint operation arrangements are as follows:

Assets "E

Film rights, films in progress and BEME BEPEY
film royalty deposits EXRERS

Trade receivable and other g 5 EWFIE Rk H i fER RS
receivables

Liabilities afR

Trade payable and other payables & 3 FE{S 7B K H A FEFIE

Receipt in advance FE U FRIR

Revenue g

Expenses B

Loss after income tax MRETEHEREE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

AREEEETBUFE=AFILET
BEERTH URFETNE
B R P EI MR BT - AEBRZ
EEEEBER20% Z90% 22
BfgR MR- ZE—N\F=A=+—
B RAKERNZEaLEBTH
ZREBREREVBREBERZEE
BB EARBENT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
106,678 71,976
- 1,334
106,678 73,310
(60) (527)
(2,588) (5,647)
(2,648) (6,174)
7,369 9,131
(8,940) (37,510)
(1,571) (28,379)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

18 Financial instruments by category 18 BENEISZMBEIR
The accounting policies for financial instruments have B ITAZETBHREEARTIE
been applied to the line items below: Ig
Financial
Available- assets at
for-sale fair value
Loans and financial through
receivables assets profit or loss Total
BORE
HRR AHHE HARER
ERRE HERE ZHMBRE st
HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
At 31st March 2018 R-E-N\F=A=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENBEE
(note 20(a)) (Hit20(a)) - 3,498 - 3,498
Trade and other receivables EHREMEKFE 43,708 - - 43,708
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFTABER 2B
profit or loss (note 20(b)) BE(WE200b)) - - 41,922 41,922
Pledged bank deposits (note 19(b)) BEBRTER
(st 19(b)) 23,500 - - 23,500
Short-term bank deposits (note 23) RERITERMF23) 1,856 - - 1,856
Cash and cash equivalents (note 23)  BE&RZEFHRELER
(Hfzt23) 55,406 - - 55,406
124,470 3,498 41,922 169,890
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e RS ERAR MY R

18 Financial instruments by category

(Continued)

Assets

At 31st March 2017

Available-for-sale financial assets
(note 20(a))

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates
(note 16)

Amounts due from joint ventures
(note 17(a))

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 20(b))

Pledged bank deposits (note 19(b))

Short-term bank deposits (note 23)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 23)

RE

RZ2—t¥ZRA=1+-8

At HENEER
(fiF20(a))
B 5 REMERRE
FEUR & 1\ BT
(fiaE16)
EREELERE
(Hst17(a)
BRAREFABRRZ
BB ERE (M7 20())
EEARITER
(HEF19(b))
RHRATER (ML 23)
R RERRSER
(Hfat23)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

18 BB ZMBIR &)

Financial

Available- assets at

for-sale fair value

Loans and financial through
receivables assets  profit or loss Total

BARE

EXRK AthE FABRR
R E BBEE ZIBEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
- 6,712 - 6,712
28,621 - - 28,621
13,757 - - 13,757
5,015 - - 5,015
- - 46,011 46,011
23,500 - - 23,500
2,258 - - 2,258
123,585 - - 123,585
196,736 6,712 46,011 249,459




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

18 Financial instruments by category 18 BERNEISZMBEIR @)
(Continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BREEEE
JIRZ
HMBEER
HK$°000
FET
Liabilities afr
At 31st March 2018 BW-E—)I\FE=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 28(a)) B8 (Kfz 28(a)) 46,042
Obligations under finance leases (note 28(b)) MERNEBE(HE280)) 312
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMENTIRE 66,379
Amounts due to associates FE{TBEE N BIFRIE 1,834
114,567
At 31st March 2017 A _ZT—tF=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 28(a)) BE (i 28(a)) 9,230
Obligations under finance leases (note 28(b)) RIERNE B (fZE28(b)) 548
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAESFIE 68,350
78,128
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e IR MR

19 Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

(@) Trade receivables

Counterparties without external WENBEEFTR 2R
credit rating
— Existing customers with no — BENEERLHEZ
defaults in the past RERF

(b) Pledged bank deposits

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {EEFR(EEEHE)
A-1 A-1

Hong Kong dollar-denominated balances as at 31st
March 2018 represent fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks in Hong Kong that are pledged
against the banking facilities granted to the Group.
Please refer to note 28(a)(iii) for further details of the

arrangement.
At 31st March 2018, the weighted average effective

interest rate per annum of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits is 0.9% (2017: 0.6%).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

19 MBREZERER

MABBAREZUBEEZFEER
A2ENBEEFR(MB)SBEEALH T
TR R 2 BEERETI

(a) HBEWHRE
2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
23,468 7,379

(b) EEHFBITER

2018 2017
—2-)\¥F e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FET
23,500 23,500

R-ZE-—NE=A=+—HBUBTIE
ZEBIEFEHRAEBEERTZELNE
o BIRIFIERAEEMERRTHE
ZIER - ZRBEZE—SHBEEFZHM
= 28(a)(iii) °

R-ZE-NEF=A=+—10  K&EECD
HIFRITER 2 MELHIEREFNERS
0.9B(=ZZE—+tHF :06E) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

19 MESEZEEER &)

19 Credit quality of financial assets

(Continued)
(c) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank (c) BEeRERREFAREHMRT
deposits 52
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {EEFR(FEEHE)
A-1 A-1 55,065 124,382
A2 A-2 2,112 1,314
Cash on hand EFRE 85 147
57,262 125,843
20 Financial assets 20 MBEE
(a) Available-for-sale financial assets (a) FIEHEMBEEE
2018 2017
—E-)N\FE —E—tHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
At 1st April 2017 and 2016 RIE—tFR-ZZE—XRF
MB—H 6,712 8,186
Fair value losses transfer to equity HERERR 2N AEEE
— net — 5 (3,214) (1,474)
At 31st March 2018 and 2017 REB-NFR=Z—tF
=H=+—H 3,498 6,712
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEREEERIE TS
include the following: K18 :
Equity securities listed in Hong BERALTRARS  EmE
Kong, at market value 3,498 6,712
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20 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated
in HK$.

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group
made an impairment of HK$50,000 (2017: nil) on
available-for-sale financial assets. The amount was
released from equity and recognised in “other gains
— net” in the consolidated income statement (note
6).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Listed securities, at market value:
— Equity securities — Hong Kong

— Equity securities - UK — BRAEES —

At 31st March 2018, certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$28,873,000 (2017:
HK$26,987,000) were pledged as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28(a)
(iv)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within investing activities in the cash
flow statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included in “other gains —

net” in the consolidated income statement (note 6).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

tENEBEERAE

MRS BmE
— BAES - BB

20 MESEE®)

(a)

(b)

HHEMBERE (&)
AHREEMBEELETIIE -

HE_Z-N\F=A=t+—-HLHF
E - AEERTHHEMBEEE
HR{E 50,0008 T(=F— Lt F :
) ZAEAERED  WRER
ahExz[Httks — FHE]
(MiEE6) HERD ©

BAREHABERCHMESRE
2018 2017
—E—)I\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
41,201 45,337
721 674
41,922 46,011

R-ZZE—N\F=A=+—H ' KA
#%8508,873,000/8 T (=ZF—+
% :26,987,000/8 ) 2% T LD
AREFABRRZUBEEDIKR
{ERAEBFTERBTRIBZIER
(FizE 28(a)(iv)) °

BAREFABRBRZMBEET
REERERZINARETH -

BAREFABRSRZUMBEEZ
NAERB A AGRERERZ
[Efblss — F8E I (FEE6) °

FERARZ 2 A RERBENE
B zRITEANERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventories

Finished goods
Less: provision for obsolete inventories

The cost of inventories recognised as expense

and included in “cost of sales”

income statement amounted to HK$1,716,000 (2017:
HK$1,113,000) (note 7). A reversal of provision for
HK$933,000 (2017: HK$77,000) of obsolescence of
inventories has been included in “cost of sales” in the

consolidated income statement (note 7). Inventories of

HK$2,659,000 was written-off during the year.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Trade receivables — net
Prepayments

Other receivables and deposits

Less: other receivables and deposits —

non-current portion

Current portion

21
SR AR
B REFERE
in the consolidated
22

B 5 B
B B REWRIERERE

E5EWFIR — F8
BNFE
Hitt R FE R ZE

o B RWFERES —
FEREE L

ENEBLD

e R R MR

78
2018 2017
—E—)\FE — oo e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
179 3,830
- (3,592)
179 238

BRABIAUFAGRERERIEER
RIZEERAAE1,716,0008 T(=F
—t % : 1,113,000 7T) (FFE7) - RE
FE 2 #ERE 933,000 8 T(=ZE—+
F 77,0008 T)EF AGZEWRERA
Z[SHERAR I(MiEE7) - 75 2,659,000
B ITERE R

B5 R HEMEKRRE

2018 2017
—ZE—)\FE —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET
45,711 29,993
(20,868) (20,930)
24,843 9,063
6,464 5,600
18,865 19,558
50,172 34,221
(5,918) (4,757)
44,254 29,464
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22 BHRAMBHRRIE®)

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values (2017: same).

At 31st March 2018, trade and other receivables
are unsecured and interest-free, except for an other
receivable of HK$751,000 (2017: HK$915,000) which is
interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus 2% per
annum (2017: 2% per annum) and secured by (i) first
legal charge over a property in Hong Kong with fair value
of approximately HK$18,433,000 (2017: HK$16,760,000);
and (i) a separate all moneys guarantee and indemnity
executed by a third party individual (2017: same), of
which HK$560,000 (2017: HK$736,000) is not repayable
within the next twelve months as at the balance sheet
date.

The credit terms to trade receivables generally range
from 7 to 90 days (2017: 7 to 90 days).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

date is as follows:

EEZE =1 B
4 to 6 months MOz 75 1E B
Over 6 months BB E A

Current to 3 months

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

EZRAMEBYHREZRESEEDR
EEE(Z2—tF : 8E)

R=ZE—N\E=A=+—-H B5KH
thEKRELABEAREE  BREAM
FE W SR 1B 751,000 (= F — £ F :
915,000 T) IZEBREEMEM2E
ZERNER(ZE—t&F  EFR2E)F
B ¥ BA() 2 72 {8 4 18,433,0003% T
(=ZZ—+% :16,760,00058 ) 2 & &
MEZE—EERT &(u)”*—EﬂEIA
BUYZBIYHERRBERE(
—t 5 : HE)FIEK#H - 560,000 %
T(=ZF—+ 4% :736,00087T) BAR
#EART_EARMEE-

ESRERFZEBZ2EEH -—RNF7E0
K(ZEB—+LF :7290K) °

ERBZAHFELZE S BWFARE
DHRWT :

2018 2017
—E—)I\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
24,843 9,063
20,868 20,930
45,711 29,993




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The analysis on the expected recovery date of trade

receivables is as follows:

Not more than twelve months after the
reporting period

More than twelve months after the
reporting period

At 31st March 2018, trade receivables of HK$1,965,000
(2017: HK$1,684,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 3 months =@AR
HBid =18 A

Over 3 months

At 31st March 2018, trade receivables of HK$20,868,000
(2017: HK$20,930,000) were impaired and fully provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly

difficult financial situation.

THBHREMR+ @A

BRmEHET @A

e R R MR

22 BHOREMBIKRIE =)

B EWRIEZTERKE B #8570
e 8

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
38,207 29,993
7,504 —
45,711 29,993

R-ZE-—NF=Z=A=+—H BE5FE
g #7718 1,965,0008 T(=ZF — £ & :

1,684,000 % 5t) BB HAE R IF(E - %5
FEWGRIBEEZ BN EMIF B LE 2B
VYEFERE - ZEZE 3 RNFREBEZRER
DMWT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FiEx
1,965 1,684
1,965 1,684

R-ZE-—NF=A=+—H EBEZE
g 7% 18 20,868,00058 T (=T — + F :
20,930,000 % 7t ) E A B & =t 12 & S
o BERRERKRRETEE —ZHR
BRI R REZEFHE ©
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR#E
NTD A

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

At 1st April 2017 and 2016 RZE—tER=

MA—H
Written-off of trade receivables

At 31st March 2018 and 2017
=A=+—H

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

tENEBEERAE

s E 7 B UWGRTE

REB-NFERZE—

22

—REF

=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

BHREMEBIWRIE 2)
AEBESREMERSIE FEHSE
T B S HsEHE
2018 2017
—E—)\%F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEBT FiT
29,837 27,013
18,309 5,159
2,026 2,049
50,172 34,221

AEEEZRUFRRERBESB W

T :
2018 2017
ZE—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
20,930 22,423
(62) (1,493)
20,868 20,930

RBEEAzRESFEERARS LNEEE

WK IR Z BREE
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Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

23 Cash and cash equivalents and short- 23 BeaREFERBAELHAEBARER
term bank deposits TER

2018 2017

ZE—\F§ —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$000

FETT FExT

Cash and cash equivalents HERERBEEER 55,406 123,585

Short-term bank deposits EHASR 1T 1,856 2,258

57,262 125,843

ReREARSEAUREHBIER

are denominated in the following currencies: LTHE®HIE:
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
HK$ BT 8,343 115,625
RMB ARHE 46,284 5,020
NTD Hew 2,402 5,020
usD Ep) 213 165
Singapore dollar (“SGD”) F AN TT 14 13
British Pound (“GBP”) HEE 6 —
57,262 125,843

RZZE-—N\E=F=+—H  EHRT
BR2ERFANER1BE(=ZZ—+
FI07E)  ZEFRZFHHRA
113 (==& —t%F : 138H) °

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 1.35% (2017: 0.7%) per annum as at 31st March
2018. These deposits have an average maturity of 113
days (2017: 138 days).
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24 Share capital and premium

(@) Share capital

Authorised

Ordinary share of HK$0.02

each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary share of HK$0.02

each

(b) Share premium

Share premium

168

BE

FREEO0.02/8 T
ZEER

ERTREE

EREE0.0278 T
ZEBR

R0 = E

24 BEERRE
(a) B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Number of Number of
shares shares
B8 E BRHEE
’000 HK$°000 000 HK$°000
il FRT FR F#T
15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000
5,923,739 118,475 5,923,739 118,475
(b) BfRiRE
2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEx
407,428 407,428




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Share-based payments

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014. Under the scheme,
72,800,000 options were granted on 29th September
2014 at the exercise price of HK$0.7 per share. Of the
options granted, 30% vested on 29th March 2015, 30%
vested on 29th September 2015 and the remaining 40%
vested on 29th March 2016. Each share option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the

Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

are as follows:

At beginning of the year FM
Forfeited R UK
Lapsed KX
At end of the year FR

Share options outstanding at the beginning of the year
were expired and lapsed on 28th September 2017. No

options were exercised during the year.

The weighted average fair value of options determined
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was HK$0.21361
per option. The significant inputs into the model were
share price of HK$0.61 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$0.70, volatility of 61.64%, dividend yield of 0.00%,
an expected option life of three years, and a risk-free

interest rate of 0.94%.

e R R MR

25 LI RBRZMR

AAFER-_ZFE—WFNA— HET
ZHERRBFASHERRM —BER
RGBTt &8 1) RiBZxT &
72,800,000 BERER == — T F 1
A-t+hBRYE TEEARASROTE
T RHEZEBREESD > 30%ER=
Z-AF=ZA=-TNBEHRE 30%E2
R=-Z2—HFNA=-THIABEBRERT
AWHER-ZBE—ANEF=ZBA=-THLEBERE
B -SHBRERTIFEARMIELR
NAIZ—REBR °

EARITEZBRELHEZEBUT :

No. of share options
Year ended 31st March
iR iE® B
BE=RA=1+—HLFE
2018 2017
ZE-N\%F —E-iF

56,042,000 57,672,000
- (1,630,000)
(56,042,000) —

- 56,042,000

FRNERTEZBRECR-F—tF
ARBZ+TNBHEBREAN - FRLHET
B IR AE o

BREMEFSAABIDUA=ER
HETEEXABEET SHBRESR
0213618 c WERZFTEHEAR
H A ZRECBIE T THEE0.70
BT KIE61.64% ~ IR B 3£0.00% »
EABRESRB =FRERKI =R
0.94% °
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26 Reserves

Share redemption reserve
Contributed surplus (note (i)
Exchange difference
Buildings revaluation reserve
Available-for-sale financial assets
revaluation reserve
Share-based payment reserve
Accumulated losses

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

26 fEfE

MR 10 BB 48
BABER(BYE (i)

BE 5 =48

BFELHE
AHHENBEEEGREE

LR D B B 2 (a4
R2FTEE

(i) Movements of each component of the reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
credit arising from the reduction of share capital during
the year ended 31st March 1999, and the transfer
from share premium during the year ended 31st March

2010.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

tENEBEERAE

(ii)

2018 2017

— I\ =7 =g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
12 12
189,009 189,009
(1,889) 8,814
78,135 73,048
2,481 5,645

- 11,861
(170,014) (132,716)
97,734 155,673

REEBD2EBERNGESEDE
Bk o

REB2HARBRERBE
—AARFE=ZR=+—HLEFE
HRBRARBZE_ZE—Z5=4
=t-BLFEERARMEEM
BEEZER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

27 Trade and other payables 27

€ 5 e E0E
A B 3R R RS 2

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is

as follows:

B E=MEA
S (!
BB ME B

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months
Over 6 months

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR
NTD e

BH R HMERRRE
2018 2017
—=—)\%F o e
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
2,412 2,090
76,022 75,478
78,434 77,568

B ENRAERRZEARZRE DU

T
2018 2017

—E—)\FE —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

2,081 449

331 1,641

2,412 2,090

AEEEZRHEMENREZRASHE
BN RERE  WATHERE :

2018 2017
—-)\F —B—tHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FTET
39,560 36,884
38,528 40,524
346 160
78,434 77,568
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

28 Borrowings and obligations under

finance leases

Bank overdrafts, secured

Secured bank loans — current portion

Bank borrowings — current portion
Secured bank loans — non-current

portion

Total borrowings (note(a))

Obligations under finance leases
(note(b))
— Current portion

— Non-current portion

(a) Borrowings

28 ERERBMEHEHVAR

2018 2017

—E—-N\E —E2—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FiET

RITES - BEKE 18,383 =

BIERBIBITER — RBILH 21,207 1,441

RITEBE — 5ﬁ§b%ﬁfﬁ 39,590 1,441
BRFRTER — ERBEH

6,452 7,789

1EEHE (M (@) 46,042 9,230

MERNE B (A (b))

— REIE D 168 236

— ERENEB1D 144 312

312 548

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year and repayable on
demand

Between 1 to 2 years

Between 2 to 5 years

Later than 5 years

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

—FARREBREEE

—EMFR
MERFRA
RFE

tENEBEERAE

(a) BE

AEBEEARTIIHBEER

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
39,590 1,441
1,606 1,470
4,846 4,603

— 1,716

46,042 9,230




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases (Continued)

(a)

Borrowings (Continued)

At 31st March 2018, banking facilities amounting to
HK$78,844,000 (2017: HK$78,109,000) granted by
banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s
freehold land and certain buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$23,152,000
(2017: HK$22,043,000) (note 13(c)) and certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$51,100,000
(2017: HK$47,500,000) (note 14(b));

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the
Company;

(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000
(2017: HK$23,500,000) of the Group (note
19(b)); and

(iv) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$28,873,000 (2017: HK$26,987,000)
of the Group (note 20(b)).

At 31st March 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings
bear floating interest rates of Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.25% p.a. to 2.5%
p.a. (2017: nil) and fixed interest rate of 1.9% for
New Taiwan dollar-denominated loans (2017: 1.9%).
The weighted average effective interest rate per
annum of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31st
March 2018 is 3.0% (2017: 1.9%).

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their
carrying amounts at 31st March 2018 and 2017.

e R R MR

28 fEERMIEAVART =)

(a)

BE(E)
RZEBE—N\F=A=+—H &%
£78,844,000/8 T (=& — L &F :

78,109,000 & T ) Z $R1T il £ &R
TRFAEER > WHLATHEEER
#

() BRME#{E %A23,152,000% T
(== — £ F :22,043,00058
T RAEBE T RKAEEL
#h ] & T2 F (£ 13(c)) &
BR [ 42 {2 & 51,100,000 78 JT
(== —+ % : 47,500,000
TU) ZAREEE TIREWE (Mt
& 14(b)) ZEEHT

(i) ADAFEILZDARER:

(i) ZAEEEHEARTER
23,500,000 T(= & —
F : 23,500,000 JT ) (Fff &
19(b)) ; &

vy AEERAALEFABRRZ
B 7% & 7 28,873,000 78 jt (=
Z — 4 : 26,987,00078 7T )
(Ff=E20(b)) °

RZE—N\F=A=+—H K&
B ZRITERERBRBIRITEFEFE
BM125BZE25E 2 FF = 2%
BAR(ZE—tF  E)5TE M
LB E2ERAZREERE
19E(ZZ2—tF 19E)st R -
R-ZB-NF=A=+—H ' K&
BRITEE ZMEFIIERER=E

BI30E(ZE—tF 19E)
= —)\E&_g +tE=H

=t—RB BEZAREERES
B *E%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

28 Borrowings and obligations under

finance leases (Continued)

(b) Obligations under finance leases

The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the

lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities

by the Group.

Gross finance lease liabilities —
minimum lease payments:
— No later than 1 year
— Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years

Future finance charges on finance

leases

Present value of finance lease

liabilities

MERNEBERE —
BRIRAEMAK
— —FR
— —FUFREEFER

BMEMNZARBEEN

BEHRNEEZRE

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as

follows:

— No later than 1 year - —%R
— Later than 1 year and no later than — —F LU ERFAFR
5 years
MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =R iR g4 & £ B A R A

MEHANMAR
HAREERENEE
EEFNERETHEA -

28 {EERMFIHEVART =)

- AIFAKE

2018 2017

—E—)\FE —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

176 252

147 323

323 575

(11) (27)

312 548
MERNEBZRENT !

2018 2017

—=—)\%F —E—+tHF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

168 236

144 312

312 548




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

29 Deferred income tax 29 EREFRFH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset i B B LR B BT RERAS EH TSR
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current EEHBHEHRAEIRE  BELERR
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities SBHEEREEHERE —HREEEN — @
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities R EERBERBRZFEHEE
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation MEBEEREESRFHEEELEHRE
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable B BIEEFRSHEEREE ESEAIK
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances Ho RS HEERELEMSHERE
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax DA

assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

2018 2017
ZE—-I\F —E—iF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be BRAEE+ — @A B E ZIELE
recovered after more than 12 months FEHEE (3,904) (3,442)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be BREB+ —EAEERZIEL
crystallised after more than 12 months EHasE 28,349 26,264
Deferred income tax liabilities — net ELEFEHARE — F58 24,445 22,822
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is IRIEFTEMEEE 2 F&2BWT :
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
At 1st April 2017 and 2016 RIE—tFER-ZZE—XREF
MA—H 22,822 22,498
Tax charged to the consolidated income MR#&RE Wz KRR ZHIE
statement (note 9) (K&t 9) 743 231
Tax charged to other comprehensive REMEEI IR ZBIE
income 819 380
Exchange differences [E N ELR 61 (287)
At 31st March 2018 and 2017 REB-NFR=Z—tF
=H=+—H 24,445 22,822
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29 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2016
(Credited)/charged to the
consolidated income

statement
Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2017

Charged to the consolidated
income statement

Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2018

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 % £4

RZZE—AREME—H
REEWER (G,
R

RE M2 E R E R
fE 5 EZE
RZZ—+F
=A=t-~H
RS R R IR

RE b2 E W = R

ERERE

LENEBBRAA

29 SEFEFR{SIR (=)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

REFAREE 2 #5E 8 E T IR H A R
ZFERNELEFREHEELESEEEH N

T :
BEFFRRAR
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total
MERBRE [RERS #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
5,787 20,254 26,041
(26) 156 130
— 380 380
— (287) (287)
5,761 20,503 26,264
1,009 196 1,205
- 819 819
— 61 61
6,770 21,579 28,349




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Deferred income tax (Continued)

e R R MR

29 SEFEFR{SIR (=)

Deferred income tax assets BEFRSREE
Tax losses
RIAGIE
2018 2017
—ZE—)\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAET FET
At 1st April 2017 and 2016 RIE—tFR-ZE—XRF
9E—H (3,442) (3,543)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated ~ R4&R&UWZER (GFA),/HIER
income statement (462) 101
At 31st March 2018 and 2017 RZB-NERZZ—tF
=A=+-—H (3,904) (3,442)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$541,401,000 (2017: HK$468,756,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date,
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$132,452,000
(2017: HK$120,510,000) which will be expired within 5

years.

AR BB B AEEREBENRE TREE
BARRERBAEFUARRERRER
RELFMEHEE - AEEERER
7 18 5 18 541,401,00008 T(=Z & —
% : 468,756,000 Jr ) 7] 4 & LUK §5
RARZERBBA - AR TEERE R
REBEE HUSBRIAZEBES
18 ° BR 132,452,000 BT (=ZF—t F :
120,510,000 T ) 2 M IBEEEER A F
REIEI  ZERBEHBLEEEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

30 Cash flow information 30 HeREFTH
(a) Cash used in operations (a) EEFRAR®

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash

used in operations

2018 2017
—2-\#F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Loss before income tax MRETSHAIERE (49,781) (85,071)
Adjustments for: KTE
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHE L1 £ ith 5 FA R 8
land use rights (note 12) (HiaE12) 788 788
Depreciation of property, plant and WIZE - MBRBEITE (HF13)
equipment (note 13) 8,084 13,846
Impairment of property, plant and Wz - WBRRBERE R 13)
equipment (note 13) - 14,058
Fair value gains on revaluation of REMEE M- 22 A ERE
investment properties (note 14) (HiaE 14) (19,309) (8,130)
Amortisation of film rights (note 15) B EE (FE 15) 29,155 32,177
Provision for impairment of film rights ZEMER B P E S 2 RER
and films in progress (note 15) & (ffaE15) 17,175 18,278
Share of losses of associates — net  E{GHE N TEE — B
(note 16) (Kizt 16) 1,942 949
Share of loss of a joint venture EhaEtERBEMZ17)
(note 17) 1,902 797
Provision for impairment of interest in R — & & PEER Z BB RE
a joint venture (note 17) (MiaE17) 282 —
Provision for impairment of amount  FEW— = A T FHRIE 2
due from an associate (note 16) BB S (KL 16) 9,415 -
Provision for impairment of amount ~ fEW—RE&&ETIEZ
due from a joint venture (note 17) BB E (M 17) 9,086 =
Provision for impairment of other HAh R IE 2 B E R
receivables 1,283 —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AJ{it HEB & E 2R EEIE
financial assets (note 20(a)) (K& 20(a)) 50 =

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

BRAGHAEBIREEERMARE 2
HER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

30 REeERETH»®)

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

(a) Cash used in operations (Continued) (a) EEFRBABR&(EE)
2018 2017
—B—-\#F —E-iF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Gain on disposal of interest in an HEN—EBE AR 2R Z

associate (note 6) Wi (Kt 6) - (7,771)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HENB ARz W= (M7 6)

(note 6) - (11,638)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE  HEEREEZ

and equipment — net (note 6) W — FEE(MEEE) (74) -
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial &2 A{EFT ABH R 207

assets at fair value through profit or ~ BEZ X REEE (W)

loss (note 6) (K1z£6) 4,089 (4,140)
Reversal of obsolescence of REFERE (ME7)

inventories (note 7) (933) (77)
Interest income (note 8) FEWA (K 8) (821) (1,314)
Interest expense on loans (note 8) BERF SR (MZ8) 270 225
Interest element of finance leases RMERN 2 F S50 (ML 8)

(note 8) 16 9
Exchange (gains)/losses R (W) EiE (21,559) 7,966
Changes in working capital: EESSEE:

Inventories 7E 992 (54)

Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H A BRI (17,233) 21

Amounts due from associates JE Lt B 1N B FRIR 6,176 (5,836)

Amounts due from joint ventures & & CERIE (4,071) (2,496)

Trade and other payables E 5 REMENRE 28,770 (29,373)

Receipts in advance TR FRIE (8,547) 12,370
Cash used in operations EEfMARS (2,853) (54,416)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

of net debt and

the movements in net debt for each of the periods

presented.

Net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Liquid investments (note (i)

Borrowings - repayable within one
year (including overdraft)

Borrowings - repayable after one

year

Net debt

Cash and liquid investments
Gross debt - fixed interest rates

Gross debt - variable interest rates

Net debt

gt

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

30 REeERETH»®)

BeRkERBELER
RENMEIRE (A7 ()
B8 - AR—FREE

(BIEEEX)
BE — AR—

BB FE

RERn@trRE
ﬁﬁ%lwl‘t\ r\
BRRAE — F8F

B%FE

(i) Liquid investments comprise current investments
that are traded in an active market, being the

Group’s financial assets held at
profit or loss.

fair value through

tENEBEERAE

— BEEF=E

FREE

=
,_—;,;'_,

(b)

REBRZHIR
REEFINFA25 B HABERFE
ZAMREBFE2EE -

2018 2017
ot AS —E—iF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
55,406 123,585
41,922 46,011
(39,590) (1,441)
(6,452) (7,789)
51,286 160,366
97,328 169,596
(37,883) (9,230)
(8,159) -
51,286 160,366

() REBEREBENETREGS
EECZHPRE  AEE
B"i NAREFTABRER 2T

o

b‘ ﬂ

s
ok



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

30 He&RESH =

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

(b)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

Total debt as at 1st April 2016

Repayments of bank loans

Repayments of interest expenses

Inception of finance lease

Reclassification of borrowings

Repayments of capital element of finance leases
Interest expenses incurred

Exchange differences

Total debt as at 31st March 2017

Proceeds from bank loans

Repayments of bank loans

Repayments of interest expenses
Reclassification of finance lease and borrowings
Repayments of capital element of finance leases
Interest expenses incurred

Exchange differences

Total debt as at 31st March 2018

R=3-1FHA-H

P41
BRRTEN
BENEAX
BERNRR
[FEZENDE
BERERN AL
FEENSRX
ERER

RZE-t£ZA=1-H
LRERA

RORHZAENA
BRRTEN
BENEAX
MEROREECENDR
EERERN AR
FELNERX

ERER

R=2-N\FZAZ1-A
LREEH

(b) RITBLBWMZEBIR(E)

Liabilities from financing activities

BEERCAR
Finance leases Finance leases  Borrowings Borrowings
due within due after due within due after Interest
1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year payable Total
—-EREN  -EREN  -FRER -F&3IN
CHERH  HERN A -1} b4 11 fftHR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fén FEn Fén Fén Fén Fér
175 75 1,337 8,675 - 10,262
- - (1,367) - - (1,367)
- - - - (234) (234)
263 27 - - - 500
- - 1,441 (1,441) - -
(202) - - - - (202)
- - - - 234 234
= = 30 555 = 585
236 312 1,441 7,789 - 9,778
- - 19,500 - - 19,500
- - (1,652) - - (1,652)
- - - - (286) (286)
168 (168) 1,707 (1,707) - -
(236) - - - - (236)
- - - - 286 286
- - 211 310 - 581
168 144 21,207 6,452 - 2191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

31

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

(c) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book value (note 13)
Gain on disposal of property, plant

and equipment — net (note 6)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment P8 FRIR
Contingencies
On 13th April 2011,
summons and a statement of claim, which was further
amended on 12th October 2012, 4th April 2014 and 30th

March 2017, with no specified amount of the amount

the Company received a writ of

of damages being claimed by a third party in respect of
alleged fraudulent breaches relating to the management

of an associated company which is under liquidation.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice from
the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, consider such claim is not strong,
and the Company has a good chance to defend its
position. In this regard, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate any material liabilities would arise from
this litigation and there would be no material impact
to the financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
years ended 31st March 2017 and 2018.

tENEBEERAE

BREFE(AEE13)
HEYE  HBERZEZ
Wz — FBEHEE)

HEME ~ HBERR

30 REeERETH»®)

wz

31

(c) RESRERT » HEWE - HeE
KRBz GRS

2018 2017
ZE—)\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
84 =
74 =
158 —

RRER
R-ZBE——FNA+=H  AAFEE
—EASHREBEZBH(R=_ZE—=
F+HA+=ZH - =ZZE—-NFWNAMNH

R-E-tFZA=t+EEE— 5
) —BESHBMNE bR RE
BAEEANEER 2 ISERETRY
BERMSERLARTREHE-

ERBAEERAZER(EERESH
BER)Z ARAESEAR FEH
RIEEES  MARABROEESRH
VISEE - BENY  ALRESEY
ERFATEEEENERERS
BHEE_ZT—LtFR=F —)\E A
ST -HEFEXRRFAZHBHRERRAE
SEzGANBHRRELEAZE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Film rights, films in progress and film

royalty deposits B MERE
Investments (note (a)) RE (B1EE (a)
Licenses iR &

In August 2014, the Group entered into agreements
to set up joint ventures, MREEFRRESEER
RACEEFRNandEREXETDRREREES D
(EREF(“EHXEZTHAREE”). As at 31st March
2018, the Group had a financial commitment of
RMB49,500,000 (equivalent to HK$61,306,000) in
respect of unpaid capital contributions to these
joint ventures, which represented the Group’s
49.5% equity interests in&XEDHREE (2017:
RMB49,500,000 (equivalent to HK$55,876,000) in
respect of unpaid capital contributions to these joint
ventures, which represented the Group’s 49.5%
equity interests in& X EDTHREE).

In April 2018, the Group has resolved to dissolve
the joint ventures, and its financial commitment in
respect of unpaid capital contributions was released

subsequent to the year end date.

TRHE - BEFER

e R R MR

32 BEXARIE
RBEBROTHEREE > EARE
W

2018 2017
—E—)\%E ==+
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FBT
72,875 60,786
61,306 55,876
5,225 2,730
139,406 119,392

REZE-—WFENA > REBMTLH
BUBLEECEMREEERR
EEEARLAATEEFRIDE
EREKETERRERESOESR
REBTEXEZERER D -
R=BE-—NE=ZBA=+—H ' K
EEFOZEEELEFEZK
T HE 8 HE AR ¥ 49,500,000 7T
(18 7 61,306,000% 7T ) = 81 ¥
A HERAEBRESKES
BREEZ49.5%BE(=ZZ—+
FRZESECEFEE 2 RGEH
E 58 AR ¥ 49,500,000 7T (HHER
55,876,00087T) » HERAREE
REXETEREH 249.5% K
RE) ©

REZB-NFHA  XEEZRE

Beaghs® MEABRTIEZ
MR EBEERFE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

33 Operating lease commitments

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
in respect of its theatre operations under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the majority
of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year —F R

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 —F U ERAFR

years

hER

Later than 5 years

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$7,424,000 (2017: HK$7,387,000) (note 7).

tENEBEERAE

33 EEHEHKIE

(a)

EERNHERE — EHEREA
REEHHE KT EBRE T ATH
HEEHNBRERETHAE
M PN F—ZE=+F > BX
BN R UABERIZTIEK
FEME o RIBTATHECERNX
2 ARSEESLBENOT :

2018 2017
—E—)\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FiET
6,926 6,130
27,817 24,877
55,607 58,683
90,350 89,690

BE-_ZT-\F=A=+—HLHF
E - AEEHESE X 7,424,000
BT (=% —+ F:7,387,000%
T RT R ERN T (MIEET)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 Operating lease commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties to
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between
1 to 3 years. The future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 —F U ERAEER

years

As at 31st March 2018 and 2017, the Company
did not have any significant commitments under

operating leases.

e R R MR

33 BEHVRE=)

(b)

EERANKRE — FHHEA
AEERBEFITHESERIZH
mETHFHEEREYX-H
HNF—Z=F - RETTHHEL
EHEAOWEZ RREKERSHFEL
T :

2018 2017
—E—N\E —E2—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,631 2,629
2,844 1,391
5,475 4,020

RZEBE-—NER-ZZE—tF=H
=+—H  RQABRELEEMELRL
EFH A RIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

34 Related party transactions
Save as disclosed in other notes to t
financial statements, significant

transactions, which were carried out

34 AREALTEZS
he consolidated FRERE B 7% 3R R EL AP aE FT I 78 & 41
related party AEERBEERBRIPETZERE
in the ordinary BEATRZAOT :

course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

(@) Sales of services

Rental income received/receivable
from rental of office premises to
associates

Management fee income received/
receivable from an associate

Service fee income received/
receivable from an associate

Interest income received/receivable

from an associate

Sales of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all customers.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

(a) SHERRH
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
HERAEPETHENRZ
g2 ERES KA
1,214 734
Bl R —EBE AR ZEES
A 245 245
Bl el — R AR Z RIS E
A - 1,845
gl —EEsE AT ZFE
A 465 310
1,924 3,134

tENEBEERAE

HERBDZEBRERRAERF
Z—REEIRTGELT o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Purchases of services

34 HE

(b)

Post-production and origination B BT -—EBEARZ
services paid/payable to an B HASUER BB IRTS
associate

Playout services paid/payable to an Bt F—REEE ATz

associate R 7%

Other administrative costs paid/ et/ BT —RgE AT Z

payable to an associate H AT B AN

Purchases of services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution
of the activities of the Group. Key management
compensation is disclosed in note 38(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

(c)

e R R MR

EATEH @)
RERS

2018 2017
—E—N\%F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Fi87
10,216 12,119
3,585 4,933
400 400
14,201 17,452

BERBINEEREARFAEHE
B2 —RERIRFET ©

TEEEARWHME
FEEESERERRATEERE
AB BHEEAESHE  EBR-
EHRBITAEEZER - TEE
BABHELEHRS VB BRRMT
38(a) P EE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|A-|

B wREET

34 Related party transactions (Continued) 34

35

36

(d) Year-end balances

(Payables to)/receivables from

associates (note 16)

(FES) FEUREs & N R F0E
(K1t 16)

Receivables from joint ventures W E & hER

(note 17(a)) (/3/9‘5?77(3))
Dividends 35
The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2018
(2017: nil).
Group structure — principal subsidiaries 36

Principal

Name incorporation activities
ol A R TERS

Shares held directly by the Company:
FATEERARN :

Mei Ah Holdings Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:

FARRERERR -

Brilliant Idea Group Limited

ATEFREERLA

ABELES

British Virgin Islands  Investment holding

REER

Production of films and
tele-features
MEEYRERT H

EREATEZ R @)
(d) FE##5e8
2018 2017
ZE—)\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
(1,834) 13,757
- 5,015
2
%%Z:L /ﬁﬁﬁi—'é—)\fﬁ A

=t HEEEzZRE(ZZE—tF:
/) o

KEEW — TENBLT

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled

Particulars of

issued share capital/

registered capital by the Group
ER{TRE/ FEEBE /B
EmEEEE ZHENERANL
50,050 ordinary shares 100
of US$1 each
50,050 RERAE 1 £ T2
10,000 ordinary shares 95
of HK$1 each
10,000 REREE1ETZ
ZER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name

4

Cameron Entertainment Company Limited

EEREARAT

MATV Limited

ZDERARLT

MATV (Asia) Limited

XDER(EMERLT

Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited

XL(EB)ERLT

Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited

REEFRFERLT

Mei Ah Investment Company Limited

RENEREARLT

Place of

incorporation

R 2 0

Hong Kong

&8

Hong Kong

&8

Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong

&k

Principal

activities

IRRE

Production of films and

tele-features

RFEERERTH

Television operations

ERER

Television operations

ERXHE

Sales and distribution of

audio visual products
HERBRTYEER

Production of films and
tele-features
BFEYRERY

Property investment

NERE

e R R MR

36 KEER — ETEMELF

(&

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERfTRE/
EMEFEE

by the Group
FEEEH /6
ZERRRESL

2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
2REREEBTZEBR

4 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
ARBREEI BT ERR

20,000 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each

20,000 RBREE1 BT
LER

10,000 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each

10,000 REREE1 B2
LBk

2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
2RERAEE1 BT EER

2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each
500,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each
2REREGEI BT EER
500,000 REREE1ETZ
BRIEEERD
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(Continued)

Name
1]
Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited
ERRERERRAT
Faithful Arts Entertainment and Culture Limited
(note (c))
BERETIEERAR
(i)
BIG Artiste Management Limited
ATHERRAH

ERXTLEREBRAT
(note (d)) (H7 (@)

EERBFAL (LR
(Hiie)

7)ER A (note (g))

ZTRAFREE (LH)ERAF hote (g)

(W)

ETEH(R2)BRAE (note (d))
(His# (o)

FERGBERROARLT

36 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

R 2 0

Hong Kong

&t

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

&k

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

Taiwan

PAY
A=

Principal

activities

IRRE

Concert performance

Nl 2
EEE

Events organisation

EHEH

Artiste management

EAEE

Property investment

ES

Provision of services

RERE

Theatre investment

EFRRE

Theatre operations

EVRER

Sub-licensing of film rig

(&)

hts

and television operations

BREFMENEAXY

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

36 KHEER — ETEMELF

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERfTRE/
EMEFEE

by the Group
FEEEH /6
ZERRRESL

10,000 ordinary shares 55
of HK$1 each

10,000 RERAE 1 £ 2
EER

1,000,000 ordinary shares 34
of HK$1 each
1,000,000 REREE 127
EER

1 ordinary share of 100
HK$1 each
1REESR1 BT EBR

RMB16,000,000 70
AR#16,000,000 7T

RMB10,000,000 100
AR#10,000,000 7T

RMB20,000,000 100
AR#20,000,000 7T

RMB3,000,000 100
AR#3,000,000 7

2,000,000 ordinary shares 85
of NTD10 each

2,000,000 REREE 10
MawzERR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

36 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Particulars of

issued share capital/

36 KEER — ETEMELF

(4&)

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled

registered capital by the Group
BER{TRE/ sREEE /2
EREEHE CEREBEARL
HK$2,500,000 90
2,500,000 ¢

RMB6,000,000 100
AK®6,000,000 7T

RMB5,000,000 100
AK®5,000,000 7T

(Continued)

Place of Principal
Name incorporation activities
o A R T 0 B TERH
EZTAK(Z)BBERLFE (note (8)) PRC Video online investment
(it () A FRRBIERERE
ERXRER(L8)BRAT (hote (d)) PRC Theatre operations
(B () A EE
EREBREYRIT(LXR)ERAH hote (6)) PRC Distribution of films
(it () A BIEY
Note:

(@)

Other than MATV (Asia) Limited which operates in
Hong Kong and overseas, BEFIZaz LR AR AT -
EDRBEHEE(AR)BRLE, ZEREFREE (L
R)ERARF  ZLEH(RB)BRAR » ZRRKR(ER)
BEBRAR » R MRER(LG)BRAE and EHE
PR EE 8/ 317 (4t ) B PR A A which operate in the PRC, =
TIRELEL R IR B PR A & which operates in Taiwan, all
subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong.

All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability
companies.

The entity is a subsidiary of Mei Ah Entertainment
Productions Limited and, accordingly, is accounted for
as subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control over
it.

Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
established under the PRC laws.

Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established
under the PRC laws.

wat -

(@)

BREGER(@EMBRAITARE R
KghEe s EMEZRENER
RAF - ELEREZEC(HER)
ERAA XDREBEKEE(L
R)BRAR -~ ZREH(KRF)BR
DNE > FRRRA)BHRBERA
A XD NKREKE(EE)BRAEF
REDEBREZBRT(ER)BRL
ARHERE  UREGIRERR
BROBRDANEELLEIN  E
MERAREZEEBEE -

LIIRBEHB ARG RERLF -
ZERAEZLHRBREARQIAZ

—RENEAR  XEMIBALRQE
BRHZGIEZMB AR -

RBBEREERR I ZHIEEDR
%O

AREBEPEEERIZIEBED
%O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

37 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS HE
Non-current assets FERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR 2 EE R
and amounts due from FEUR B 8 1~ B) 7R I8
subsidiaries
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments FEASTFIE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRERBEER
Total assets HEE
EQUITY a2

Equity attributable to owners ZF2ATFHBARGES
of the Company

Share capital g7
Share premium Iz a8
Reserves &
Total equity HER
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities mE R
Other payables H b fE(TFIE
Total liabilities HEaR|
Total equity and liabilities HESRAR

The balance sheet of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2018 and

were signed on its behalf.

Director
EE
Li Kuo Hsing
FEHE

37 FLFICHEARERR EM

(a) FLFIZEEREBER
As at 31st March

BR=B=+—H
2018 2017
ZE—)\F —E—+tHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Btat F#ET FET
736,279 640,893
337 337
66 100,029
403 100,366
736,682 741,259
24 118,475 118,475
24 407,428 407,428

Note (b)

Kzt (b) 210,627 214,835
736,530 740,738
152 521
152 521
736,682 741,259

AARZEERERR-2—/N\F
NAZTN\BEES=SHE - M
REABEE -

Director

EE
Tong Hing Chi
BB



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

37 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 37 FATIZEERABEREZM

the Company (Continued) S8z
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) FLAFZEMEE
Share Share-based
redemption payment  Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
DR & ERE
BROMOIER MGG BARR RiER ot
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note (i))
(Wt ()
At 1st April 2016 RZE—RF
mA—A 12 12,178 235,020 (28,463) 218,747
Loss for the year FREB — — = (3,912) (3,912)
At 31st March 2017  R=Z—+f
=A=+-H 12 12,178 235,020 (32,375) 214,835
At 1st April 2017 R-E—+F
mA—H 12 12,178 235,020 (32,375) 214,835
Loss for the year EREE - - - (4,208) (4,208)
Transactions HERACZS
with owners, HERERRMRD
recognised
directly in equity
Share options lapsed  EBIRAER M - (12,178) - 12,178 -
At 31st March 2018 ~ RZZ-N\fF
=A=t-H 12 = 235,020 (24,405) 210,627
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

37 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company (Continued)

(b)

Reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

(i)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for
the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and
the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired,
the credit arising from the reduction of share
capital during the year ended 31st March 1999
and the transfer from share premium during
the year ended 31st March 2010. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable

if these are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued

share capital and share premium account.

tENEBEERAE

37 FLFICHEARERR EM

S8

(b)

FAFZEMEE (&)

(i)

RRABZHABBEARRD
AIREWMHELRC T
JR 7S T 8% 47 2 IR 40 T 1B B2 Y
WEMELAREEFEZE
B-RBE-NWANAF=ZA
=+ — B FEHIRRA M
EEZERRRBE-FT—
EFE=ZA=+—-BLFEH
RIDEEERZER - BRI
BREE-NAN-—FQEEE
1E57) - B SEEEAEE
THEE  BIBARSKAA
2K

(1) ADARERREL A
FEmERNEa AN
B AEE R

(2 AQARNEEZUERE

BEHEEmMIREEER

HE B#TRAUR K4
RERZAET o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 Benefits and interests of directors

(a)

Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of all directors for the years
ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 is set out below:

e R R MR

38 EFmEFIRER

(a)

EEHe
BE_Z-\FR=-ZF—tF=A
St HLFEXRESCHMR
P

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking:
REAREER(TRESLTEANELNRE REEIHEE S :

2018 217
- S E-tF
Employer's
contribution Employer's
toa contribution
retirement toa
benefit retirement
scheme benefit
itz scheme
Name of Director Fees Salary Bt Total Fees Salary  EEZBA Total
1.3 fig i i ot &t e e RAEAMR &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TET FET FET FET F8r 71 223 F&1
Executive directors HEE
Li Kuo Hsing e - 4714 18 4732 - 4111 18 4729
Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive Officer) BB (7HER) - 2072 18 2,090 - 2072 18 2,090
Li Tang Yuk 3G - 701 18 9 - 699 18 mn
Dong Ming &6 - 2,142 18 2,160 - 2,133 18 2,151
Non-executive directors FUTER
Hugo Shong RS 80 - - 80 80 - - 80
Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 80 - - 80 80 - - 80
Independent non-executive directors  BiFHTEE
Lam Lee G. h5E 8 - - 80 80 - - 80
Guo Yan Jun e 80 - - 80 80 - - 80
Leung Tak Sing, Dominic 288 80 - - 80 80 - - 80
400 9,620 172 10,101 400 9,615 72 10,087

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017,
these were no discretionary bonuses, allowance
and benefits in kind or other remunerations paid or
receivable in respect of director’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

BE-E2-N\FR-ZF—tF=A
=t+—BILFE  SEEABEE
AL REERBYANGE  NRESHE
BARNREHEREMBRRESE
EEMBBE ARz H
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

38 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors has waived any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st March
2018 and 2017.

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2018 and 2017.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2018 and 2017.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available director’s services

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017,
no consideration was paid by the Company to third
parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017,
there are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

38 EFRIRER 2

EEMe &)
MEBEEEHRBE-_Z-N\FR=
E—tHF=A=+-HIEFEZfF
AT

EFRHFEF
BE-Z—)\&R-_Z—t5=A
=t+-HLEFE  SEEBESHIN
6 W B (TR RAB A ©

EFERLER
BE-Z2-\ER-ZF—tF=A
=t—RLLFE HESEECER
G R EAE(ATA& LE3E R ©

RERUEERBAE=FRH#Z
RIE
BE_Z-/\ER-ZF—tF=A
=t —HIEFE  ARAMERE
REESRBEOEME =S AR
B o

FRLESE EEZERHEER
MERERZIBAZHER  EHER
RRMXHZEH

BE—Z-/\FR-ZF-—tF=A
=+—BLFE BELNES-
ExrRE %'JP&I)SZE%L&%%%
BAZER - BEERREMRT

B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(f)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

On 9th June 2017, the Group entered into a
joint venture agreement with Mr. Li Kuo Hsing,
the Chairman of the Company, to form a joint
venture company intended primarily to invest in
motorsports entertainment business at equity and
loan commitments of HK$1,000 and HK$3,000,000
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company has
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of 31st March 2018 and 2017
or at any time during the years ended 31st March
2018 and 2017.

e R R MR

38 EFRIRER 2

(f)

BEERKZS  RUBRSWHRZEX
&

RZZE—tFEXANA  AEEHE
RAFZEREZHELEETLEE
AEE UARERBEFRIESD B
£1,0007% T & 3,000,000 % 7T A%
Y—EEENT  ZATRIER

BRBEEREE -

MREXFIEBEEIN  RATESH
BARQPBMEILRA-ZE—N\FR
—E—+tF=RA=1T—HEH#RBH
BE_Z-\FR=-Z—tF=AH
=t+—BHIEFEEMAFEDRAENR
BHAEEXEBEBEEZEZIRS * &
EReENPEESEEESERF

3¢
m °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEHFEE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years are as follows:

Results

Loss attributable to

owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

AARER AEE
B

2018
—E-N\EFE
HK$°000
F#T

(49,159)

BEMT :

AEERBEIEANBFEEZXE EEH

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2017 2016
—2—+tF ZE—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

(82,259) (66,188)

2015 2014
—E—FHE —Z—NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

(39,338) (23,896)

2018
—2—I\%F
HK$’000
F#ET

815,853
(187,525)

As at 31st March
BR=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

842,989 928,163
(155,367)  (168,243)

2015 2014
—E—RFE Z—ZE—NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

707,180 709,108
(172,239)  (151,844)

628,328

687,622 759,920

534,941 557,264




SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TEREYRME

Address
ok

Shop 2 on Ground Floor
Po Sun Mansion
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
JUBEAL
EH R 8935
ERRE
#h T 2 SRARA

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28
on 17th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NEENFEE
7 HL4T 32 5%
EEHPLITHE
5% ~ 15-23 55 & 25-28 35 T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2
on 10th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE
5 BT 32 9%
EEPL1042
1-257 T35

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and
Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

hEENEEE
ZFIE 1558
NEEBIEHRL
5 #2395 K% 24 5% T EE (v
R 3B V18 SR EE {

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60
The Villa Horizon
No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories

HREE
RASBE AT
ES

28553 E K 59 95 & 60 SR E

Type
|

Commercial

GES

Industrial

T

Industrial

I%

Industrial

T

Residential

Lease term

HHFER

Medium

Gab

Medium

Gab

Medium

Gk

Medium

Lkt

Medium

Gab G

Percentage
of Group’s
interests
*HREZ
B2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TEREVEMR

Address
ok

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Yangcheng
International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
R A RHEFE
EM
RO & B8 B SRR
3 3% B PR 7 R s
P& 81£801-814 =

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District

Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin

Si Ming District

Xiamen

The People’s Republic of China
REARLAE

B

BHHE

BELERBBEEFR O

SEIEYNE: 5

355121 E 2101-2106 E T

Flat 1 on Level 3

No. 2 Hua Xiao Street

Tianhe Ming Ya Court

Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China
RE ARLANE

B M

PNEIETSEE Y

LR i 27

ERAT 25

3B1E

Type
|

Commercial

[ES

Commercial

[ES

Residential

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Lease term EEEZ

HHER B2ast

Medium 100%
FRER

Medium 70%
R R

Medium 100%
AR
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LTD.
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